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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
City of Anacortes
January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020
SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
The results of our audit of the City of Anacortes are summarized below in accordance with Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

Financial Statements
We issued an unmodified opinion on the fair presentation of the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining
fund information in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAP).
Internal Control over Financial Reporting:
• Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.
• Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.
We noted no instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial statements of the City.

Federal Awards
Internal Control over Major Programs:
• Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
control over major federal programs that we consider to be significant deficiencies.
• Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material
weaknesses.
We issued an unmodified opinion on the City’s compliance with requirements applicable to each
of its major federal programs.
We reported no findings that are required to be disclosed in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a).
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Identification of Major Federal Programs
The following programs were selected as major programs in our audit of compliance in accordance
with the Uniform Guidance.
CFDA No.
20.205

Program or Cluster Title
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster – Highway Planning and
Construction

21.019

COVID-19 – Coronavirus Relief Fund

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed by
the Uniform Guidance, was $750,000.
The City did not qualify as a low-risk auditee under the Uniform Guidance.

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
None reported.

SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED
COSTS
None reported.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards
City of Anacortes
January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020
Mayor and City Council
City of Anacortes
Anacortes, Washington
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Anacortes, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 20, 2021.
As discussed in Note 18 to the financial statements, during the year ended December 31, 2020, the
City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84, Fiduciary
Activities.
As discussed in Note 24 to the financial statements, the full extent of the COVID-19 pandemic’s
direct or indirect financial impact on the City is unknown.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
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material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of the City’s compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. However, this
report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It also serves to disseminate
information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess government operations.

Pat McCarthy, State Auditor
Olympia, WA
December 20, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal
Control over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance
City of Anacortes
January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020
Mayor and City Council
City of Anacortes
Anacortes, Washington

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM
We have audited the compliance of the City of Anacortes, with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City’s major federal
programs for the year ended December 31, 2020. The City’s major federal programs are identified
in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance.
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2020.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program in order to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over
compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It also
serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess
government operations.

Pat McCarthy, State Auditor
Olympia, WA
December 20, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on the Financial Statements
City of Anacortes
January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020
Mayor and City Council
City of Anacortes
Anacortes, Washington

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City
of Anacortes, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed on page 14.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the City’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
Office of the Washington State Auditor
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opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Anacortes, as of
December 31, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.
Matters of Emphasis
As discussed in Note 18 to the financial statements, in 2020, the City adopted new accounting
guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
As discussed in Note 24 of the financial statements, the full extent of the COVID-19 pandemic’s
direct or indirect financial impact on the City is unknown. Our opinion is not modified with respect
to this matter.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information listed on page 14
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
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an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Supplementary and Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as a whole. The accompanying
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance).This schedule is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 20, 2021 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Pat McCarthy, State Auditor
Olympia, WA
December 20, 2021
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FINANCIAL SECTION
City of Anacortes
January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis – 2020

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Net Position – 2020
Statement of Activities – 2020
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet – 2020
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position –
2020
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Governmental
Funds – 2020
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities – 2020
Statement of Net Position – Proprietary Funds – 2020
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position – Proprietary Funds
– 2020
Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds – 2020
Statement of Net Position – Fiduciary Funds – 2020
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position – Fiduciary Funds – 2020
Notes to Financial Statements – 2020

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Budgetary Comparison Information (GAAP Basis) – 2020
Budget Comparison Information (Budget Basis) – 2020
Firefighters’ Pension Fund GASB Statement No. 67 Money-Weighted Rate of Return –
2020
Firefighters’ Pension Fund GASB Statement No. 67 and 68 Schedule of Changes in Net
Pension Liability and Related Ratios – 2020
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios – LEOFF 1 – 2020
Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability – PERS 1, PERS 2/3, LEOFF 1
and LEOFF 2 – 2020
Schedule of Employer Contributions – PERS 1, PERS 2/3, LEOFF 1 and LEOFF 2 –
2020
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SUPPLEMENTARY AND OTHER INFORMATION
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards – 2020
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards – 2020
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C I T Y O F A N A CO R T E S
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OVERVIEW
Our discussion and analysis of the City of Anacortes’ financial performance provides an overview of the City’s
financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020. Please read it in conjunction with the City’s
financial statements which follow.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
x

Net position, the amount by which total assets exceed total liabilities, equal $220,026,468. A total of 74.4% or
$163,779,748 of total net position net of related debt is invested in capital such as infrastructure, land, and
buildings. Of the remaining net position, 11.6%, or $25,502,889 of total net position is available to meet the
government’s ongoing activities and obligations, and 14.0%, or $30,743,831, is restricted for debt service,
capital projects, and pension obligations.

x

The City of Anacortes’ net position increased by $1,744,734 in 2020.

x

Governmental fund balances at year-end were $20,371,322, a $3,146,782 increase from the prior year. Of
this amount, $1,477,373 or 7.3%, of the governmental fund balance is unassigned, primarily in the General
fund; $9,076,182 or 44.6% is assigned, which reflects our City’s government’s intended use for certain
resources; $4,028,087 or 19.8% is committed, which represents City imposed limitations as to the use of
funds by City Council action; and $5,789,679 or 28.4% is restricted, which reflects fund resources subject to
externally enforceable legal restrictions.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The City’s basic financial statements are presented in three parts: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2)
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. Other supplementary information in addition to
the basic financial statements is also contained in this report. This section of the management’s discussion and
analysis is intended to introduce and explain the basic financial statements.
Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to give the reader a picture of the financial condition and
activities of the City as a whole. This broad overview is similar to the financial reporting of private-sector
businesses. The government-wide financial statements have separate columns for governmental activities and
business-type activities. Governmental activities of the City include general government, security of persons and
property (police and fire), physical environment, transportation, economic environment and culture & recreation.
Property, sales, and utility taxes finance the majority of these functions. The City’s business type activities are
water, wastewater, solid waste and storm drain utilities. The City’s business-type activities are self supporting
through user fees and charges.
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, highlighting the
difference between the two as net position. This statement is similar to the balance sheet of a private sector
business. The Statement of Activities presents both the gross and net cost of various activities, both
governmental and business-type, which are provided by the City. The statement distinguishes revenue generated
by specific functions from revenue provided by taxes and other sources not related to a specific function. The
revenue generated by specific functions (charges for services, grants, and contributions) is compared to the
expenses for those functions to show a net cost for each specific function.
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Fund Financial Statements
The annual financial report includes fund financial statements in addition to the government-wide financial
statements. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants, while the City
Council establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that
it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes or grants. The City’s two kinds of funds, governmental
and proprietary, use different accounting approaches.
Governmental funds are used to account for most of the City’s basic services, which focus on how money flows
into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are
reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other
financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a short-term
view of the City’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund
information helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near
future to finance the City’s programs. Comparing the governmental fund statements with the government-wide
statements can help the reader better understand the long term impact of the City’s current year financing
decisions. To assist in this comparison, reconciliations between the governmental fund statements and the
government-wide financial statements are included with the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance. The City of Anacortes
maintains several individual governmental funds; for fiscal year 2020, the City categorized as major governmental
funds the General Fund, the Street Maintenance Fund, and the Ambulance Service Fund. All other governmental
funds are combined into a single column labeled other governmental funds. The City maintains budgetary control
over its operating funds through the adoption of a budget, which is adopted at the fund level according to state
law. A budgetary comparison statement is presented for the general fund as a required supplementary
information schedule.
Proprietary funds are used by the City to account for business-type activities. Business type activities provide
specific goods or services to a group of customers that are paid for by fees charged to those customers. There is
a direct relationship between the fees paid and the services received. The City of Anacortes has two types of
proprietary funds; enterprise and internal service funds. Enterprise funds are used to account for goods and
services provided to outside customers (citizens and businesses). Internal service funds are used to account for
goods and services provided internally to various city departments. Enterprise funds of the City are used to report
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide statements with the fund
statements providing more detail than is reported in the government-wide statements. The enterprise fund
statements provide separate information for the City’s water utility, wastewater utility, solid waste utility and the
storm drain utility. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs
internally among the City’s various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for its fleet of
vehicles.
Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity for other governments, private
organizations or individuals. Fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide financial statements
because the assets are not available to support the City of Anacortes’ activities.
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Government-Wide Statements
Statement of Net Position
The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position for 2020 compared to 2019.
Table 1
Statement of Net Position

Government Activities
2020

Business-type
Activities 2020

Total for 2020

Government Activities
2019

Business-type
Activities 2019

Total for 2019

% of
Increase
(Decrease)
from Prior
Year Total

Assets
Capital Assets

55,092,528

162,072,115

217,164,643

52,255,056

155,288,452

207,543,508

Other Assets

35,708,725

43,493,736

79,202,461

32,153,028

46,121,690

78,274,718

1,433,993

540,741

92,235,247

162,072,115

296,367,104

84,408,084

201,410,142

285,818,226

Deferred Outflow of Resources
Total Assets

3.69%

Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Long-term Liabilities
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Total Liabilities

2,019,454

11,000,142

13,019,596

4,633,089

12,398,956

17,032,045

10,546,360

52,492,928

63,039,288

10,028,170

50,476,277

60,504,447

76,058,884

14,661,259

62,875,234

77,536,493

1,737,520

518,966

14,303,335

64,012,036

-1.91%

Net Position
Restricted
Unrestricted

9,574,945

21,168,886

30,743,831

8,902,060

27,268,699

36,170,759

13,264,439

12,238,450

25,502,889

8,589,710

8,698,800

17,288,509

Invested in Capital net of debt

55,092,528

108,687,220

163,779,748

52,255,056

102,567,410

154,822,465

Total Net Position

77,931,912

142,094,556

220,026,468

69,746,825

138,534,908

208,281,733

5.64%

The largest component of the City’s net position, 74.4% or $163,779,748, is its investment in capital assets less
any related outstanding debt issued to acquire those assets. These capital assets such as streets, buildings, land,
waterlines, sewer and storm drain lines and the two treatment plants are used to provide services to the citizens
and businesses of the City.
Net position of the City’s governmental activities increased by 11.7% or $8,185,087 in 2020. The increase was
aided by expenditure reductions implemented through a reducing budget amendment to prepare for the coming
Covid induced recession. By year end, the City had saved more in expenditures than it had lost in revenues.
Net position of the City’s business type activities increased by 2.6%, or $3,559,648 in 2020. This increase was
aided by the refunding of the 2010 Water Revenue bonds when the City used $14.7M in Refinery prepayment
cash to defease a large portion of that debt during the refunding.
$30,743,831, or 14.0%, of the City’s total net position is subject to legal restrictions. Some of the larger
restrictions include debt service, impact fees that must be dedicated to a particular use (transportation or parks),
lodging taxes reserved for tourism related activities and real estate excise taxes restricted for capital
improvements.
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CHANGES IN NET POSITION
The following schedule shows the revenues and expenses for the prior year and the current year.
Table 2
Changes in Net Position

Government
Activities 2020
Revenues
Property Taxes
Sales Taxes
Utility Taxes
All Other General Revenues
Water
Sewer
Storm
Sanitation
Total Revenues
Expenses:
Judicial
General Government
Public Safety
Physical Environment
Transportation
Health & Human Services
Economic Environment
Culture & Recreation
Interest on long-term debt
Water
Waste Water
Sanitation
Storm Drain
Total Expenses
Change in net position
before transfers:
Transfers:
Change in Net Position:
Net Position - Beginning
Change in Accounting Principle
Prior Period Adjustment
Net Position - Ending

5,269,287
7,770,928
4,452,167
11,309,703

Business-type
Activities
2020
Total for 2020

Government
Activities 2019

703,222
21,131,207
7,191,196
1,797,556
4,711,025
35,534,206

5,269,287
7,770,928
4,452,167
12,012,926
21,131,207
7,191,196
1,797,556
4,711,025
64,336,292

5,669,650
7,554,746
4,401,410
10,441,560

702,581
3,252,649
10,744,659
422,426
3,129,587
199,445
1,896,667
4,276,650
163,963

23,390,606

15,295,254
10,154,548
1,581,189
4,912,264
31,943,255

686,299
3,738,483
10,478,358
387,487
2,090,260
310,073
1,828,501
3,871,143
0
15,295,254
10,154,548
1,581,189
4,912,264
55,333,860

5,411,480

3,590,952

5,411,480
69,746,825
2,773,607
77,931,912

3,590,952
138,534,908
142,125,860

28,802,085

686,299
3,738,483
10,478,358
387,487
2,090,260
310,073
1,828,501
3,871,143
0

Businesstype Activities
2019

Total for
2019

% of
Increase
(Decreas
e) from
Prior
Year
Total

1,233,435
21,621,329
6,353,297
1,692,630
4,592,797
35,493,488

5,669,650
7,554,746
4,401,410
11,674,995
21,621,329
6,353,297
1,692,630
4,592,797
63,560,853

24,788,625

14,639,485
6,183,095
1,834,932
4,427,695
27,085,206

702,581
-2.32%
3,252,649 14.94%
10,744,659
-2.48%
422,426
-8.27%
3,129,587 -33.21%
199,445 55.47%
1,896,667
-3.59%
4,276,650
-9.48%
163,963 -100.00%
14,639,485
4.48%
6,183,095 64.23%
1,834,932 -13.83%
4,427,695 10.94%
51,873,831
6.67%

9,002,431

3,278,740

8,408,281

11,687,022

-22.97%

9,002,431
208,281,733
2,773,607
0
220,057,772

3,278,740
65,906,342
619,490
(57,748)
69,746,825

8,408,281
127,972,377
1,866,113
288,137
138,534,908

11,687,022
193,878,720
2,485,603
230,389
208,281,733

5.65%

28,067,365

-7.06%
2.86%
1.15%
2.89%
-2.27%
13.19%
6.20%
2.57%
1.22%

Overall, as reported on the Statement of Activities, before adjustments, the City had an increase in total net
position of $11,744,734. Of this, governmental activities had an increase in net position of $8,185,087 from the
prior year, and business type activities had an increase in net position of $ 3,559,648. The overall increase is due
to debt service and continued collection of capital in the utilities.
The purpose of the City’s Governmental Funds is to report on near term revenues/financial resources and
expenditures. This information helps determine the City’s financial requirements in the near future. In particular,
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fund balance is a good indicator of the City’s resources available at the end of the year. In 2020, as the Covid
epidemic and related quarantine orders took hold, a significant decrease in governmental revenues, particularly
sales tax, was noted. The City implemented a hiring freeze and other spending reduction measures, which
reduced City spending more than City revenues were effected, producing an increase in fund balance.
Governmental activities reported an increase in net position of $8,185,087. Key elements of the governmental
activities in were:
x

Property tax revenue decreased $400,363, or -7.1%, this was due to the end of the voted property tax levy
that supported the Library construction debt service.

x

Sales tax revenue increased $216,181 or 2.9%. The increase is due to the addition of a new 1/10 th voted
sales tax that went into effect in July of 2020 that is dedicated to Affordable Housing as outlined in RCW
82.14.530. Unrestricted sales tax decreased $162,285, or -3.3%.

x

Utility tax revenue increased $50,758, or 1.2%.

x

At year end, the General fund, as presented on the balance sheet, reported a fund balance of $12,312,627
which is an increase of 16.1%, or $1,710,843.

x

At year end the Ambulance Service fund, as presented on the balance sheet, reported a fund balance of $
1,096,874, which is an increase of 44.5% or $337,960.

x

At year end the Street Maintenance fund, as presented on the balance sheet, reported a fund balance of
$129,328 which is an increase of $135,375.

Business-Type Activities reported an increase in net position of $3,559,648. Key elements of the business type
activities in 2020 were:
x

Water fund net position increased $6,420,672, or 7.0%. The increase is due primarily to continued debt
service payments on the utility’s outstanding revenue bonds and PWTF loans, and the advance collection of
the industrial water customer’s debt service requirement on an accelerated schedule helped to increase the
utility’s net position. In 2020 the Water Revenue 2010 bonds were also refunded and $14.7M directly
defeased with Refinery pay ahead cash. See Note 8 for more information.
x

Sewer fund net position decreased $2,891,999 or -8.3%. This is due primarily related to the Sewer outfall.
The existing outfall is too small to accommodate high flow events, and will be replaced with a larger outflow
before the end of its useful life, thereby in creating an asset impairment of $2,324,173; additionally other
design options that were developed were booked into CWIP, and have now been closed out and expensed
at a cost of $1,560,206.

x

Storm fund net position increased $193,696, or 2.0%. The Strom Drain utility has had relatively stable
revenues and expenditures, and has started repaying the inter fund loan and emergency reserves it used in
2019 to meet the requirements of the Puget Soundkeepers.

x

Sanitation fund net position decreased by $162,722, or -6.6%. This was primarily due to the first year of
Pollution Remediation Obligation (PRO) expense from a former City landfill being identified as a potential
site needing additional work under the requirements of the Model Toxics Control Act (MTCA). See Note 22
for further information.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
The original General Fund budget was $24,341,320, and $25,160,237 at year end, an increase of $818,917 or
3.4%. The increase in total budget was primarily to budget for items that were started in the 2019 budget and
effectvily rolled over the following year. The largest of the budget increases were related to installing a new roof
on the Anacortes Senior Activity Center, and the continued expansion of the Access broadband network.
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Total actual expenditures out of the General Fund were $23,723,302, as reported in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances. This is $1,436,935 under budget.
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets
The City of Anacortes’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities, net of
accumulated depreciation was $217,164,643. This investment in capital assets includes land, intangible assets,
buildings and improvements, infrastructure, machinery and equipment and construction in progress. The City has
elected to exclude art and historical treasures. The total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for the
current year was $9,621,136.
Table 3
Capital Assets at Year-End
(Net of Depreciation)

Land
Buildings
Intangible Assets
Infrastructure &
Improvements Other than
Buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Construction in Progress
Total

Government
Activities
2020
21,849,670
8,936,055

13,462,907
9,993,555
850,342
55,092,528

Business-type
Activities 2020
2,069,603
55,717,164
423,326

Total for
2020
23,919,273
64,653,219
423,326

78,753,692
15,910,375
9,197,954
162,072,115

92,216,599
25,903,930
10,048,297
217,164,643

Government
Activities
2019
21,849,670
9,352,137

Businesstype
Activities
2019
1,562,195
56,903,317
406,760

Total for
2019
23,411,865
66,255,454
406,760

%
Change
From
Prior Year
Total
2.17%
-2.42%
4.07%

12,208,381
8,105,851
739,017
52,255,056

76,318,349
16,708,845
3,388,986
155,288,452

88,526,730
24,814,696
4,128,003
207,543,508

4.17%
4.39%
143.42%
4.64%

As per the Statement of Activities, Internal Service Funds net capital assets are included in the Governmental
Activities capital assets.
More information on the City of Anacortes’ capital assets can be found in Note 4 of this report.
Debt
At year-end, the City had $47,661,638 in bonds and loans outstanding versus $52,384,153 last year, a decrease
of $4,722,516. The decrease was due to primarily to defeasing $14,770,095 in Water Utility debt as part of the
2010 Water Bond refunding, using pay ahead cash from the refineries. In addition to the 14.7M defeasance, the
2020 Revenue bond provided new money for the Water Utility for a new raw water line and clearwell, and the
Sewer Utility for a new wastewater plant outfall.
Table 4
Outstanding Debt at Year-End
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds and Loans
Government
Activities 2020
General obligation
bonds and loans

Business-type
Activities 2020

0

Business-type
Activities 2019

0

Revenue bonds and
loans
Total

Government
Activities 2019

0.00%

47,661,638
47,661,638

% Change from
Prior Year Total

52,384,153
52,384,153

-9.02%
-9.02%
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The City of Anacortes is authorized to issue debt pursuant to the Acts of the State of Washington; with voter
approval, the city can issue debt up to 2.5 percent of the assessed valuation. Without a vote, the City can incur
debt up to an amount equal to 1.5 percent of the assessed valuation of taxable property within the City. The
combination of unlimited tax and limited tax general obligation debt for all purposes cannot exceed 7.5 percent.
More information on the City of Anacortes’ debt can be found in Note 8 of this report.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND THE 2021 BUDGET
The City of Anacortes City Council adopted ordinance 3073 on September 14th, 2020, which repealed ordinance
2973, which was the ordinance establishing the biennial budget process. Council agreed that during these times
of fiscal uncertainty it made sense to adopt an annual budget for the time being, to better enable closer scrutiny
and control over the budget and monitoring process. On December 21, 2020 City Council adopted ordinance
3078 adopting an annual budget for fiscal year 2021. That budget included a 1% property tax increase as allowed
by state law, adopted by resolution 3008. It is also noted that the September 2020 Implicit Price Deflator was
published at .60%, which required a resolution of substantial need to be authorized to levy the full 1%, which was
done with resolution 3007.
From an economic standpoint, 2020 held several surprises. When the Covid epidemic developed, and the
associated quarantine and stay at home orders, sales tax dropped significantly, with a year over year decrease of
over 25% noted in June receipts. With CARES grants, and destination sales tax in place, sales tax recovered
somewhat, and by year end was down 3.3% compared to 2019 receipts. There were also impacts to utility tax,
particularly from water sales, with significant decreases in industrial and commercial consumption, and at year
end 2020 water consumption was down 2.7%, or 23.6 million cubic feet, compared to 2019. In 2020 the building
and real estate markets remained strong, and those associated revenues streams reflect stable receipts
compared to prior years. The hospitality industry was significantly effected in 2020, reflected in Lodging Tax
receipts down 36.6%, or $158,857, from 2019. Through Covid, the City retained its commitment to staff, and to
the City’s broadband initiative. A hiring freeze was implemented with resolution 2082, which outlined the City’s
response to Covid, but no direct layoffs ensued, all staff savings were achieved through attrition. The City also
continued the broadband buildout throughout fiscal year 2020.
The Current Expense Fund adopted budget for 2021 has $19,571,725 allocated for appropriation. Current
Expense fund adopted budget expenditures for 2020 were $18,760,489. The increase in budget for 2021 is
811,236 which is a 4.3% increase.
The City’s assessed property values was $4,213,585,262 in 2021 resulting in a general millage of $1.278 per
$1000 of assess value; this compares to the 2020 assessment of $3,985,572,170 with a general millage of $1.328
per $1000 of assessment.
The State of Washington, by constitution, does not have a state personal income tax and therefore the state
operates primarily using property, sales, business and occupation, and gasoline taxes. The City of Anacortes
primarily relies on property, sales and utility taxes to fund governmental activities.
CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the City’s Finance Director at (360)
293-1906, email steveh@cityofanacortes.org, mailing address P.O. Box 547, Anacortes, WA, 98221.

Page 22

CITY OF ANACORTES
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2020

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash
Investments
Restricted cash and investments
Customer Deposits
Capital reserve
Bond covenant accounts
Accounts receivable (net)
Internal balances
Due from other governments
Inventory
Noncurrent assets:
Pension Assets
Capital Assets
Land
Depreciable assets (net)
Construction in progress
Total Assets
Deferred Outflow of Resources
Pension
OPEB
Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources

6,695,319
11,521,429

5,793,276

20,305,848
863,038
3,815,949
-

3,754,154

$

Total

$

15,292,716
26,257,242
26,099,124
863,038
6,459,311
184,724
292,153

292,153
-

3,754,154

21,849,670
32,392,517
850,342
90,801,254

2,069,603
150,804,557
9,197,954
205,565,851

23,919,273
183,197,074
10,048,297
296,367,104

1,295,621
138,372
92,235,247

540,741

1,836,362
138,372
298,341,838

1,515,872
88,160
72,216
58,537
276,744
7,926

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
Capital projects
Pension Assets
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

8,597,397
14,735,812

2,643,362
184,724
-

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Retainage Payable
Deposits Payable
Compensated absences
Total post employment obligation
Payable to other governments
Matured bonds, notes, loans payable
Noncurrent liabilities:
Total post employment obligation
Compensated absences
Net Pension Liability
Bonds, notes, loans payable
Pollution Remediation Liability
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Unearned Revenue
Pension
Total Deferred Inflow of Resources
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflow of Resources

Business-Type
Activities

206,106,591

1,746,897
108,472
7,500
16,789
116,866
2,942,516

3,262,769
196,631
79,716
75,326
276,744
124,793
2,942,516

6,850,358
1,112,195
2,583,807
12,565,814

318,998
1,731,550
50,442,380
6,061,102
63,493,070

6,850,358
1,431,193
4,315,357
50,442,380
6,061,102
76,058,884

476,300
1,261,221
1,737,520
14,303,335

518,966
518,966
64,012,036

476,300
1,780,186
2,256,486
78,315,370

55,092,528

108,687,220

163,779,748

5,793,276
3,781,669
13,264,439

863,038
20,305,848
12,238,450

863,038
26,099,124
3,781,669
25,502,889

77,931,912

142,094,556

$

220,026,468

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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$

$

$

$

12,292,311

9,827,111
889,031
202,773
10,918,915

1,373,396

3,131
940,883
428,205
1,177

$

$

$

(15,382,815)

-

(565,827)
(1,819,073)
(7,460,319)
(300,103)
(1,092,430)
(260,673)
(463,784)
(3,420,605)
(15,382,815)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

5,411,480
69,746,825
2,773,607
77,931,912

3,263,860

290,775
164,706
14,407
11,683
481,571

2,782,288

4,704
107,511
2,551,717
49,400
68,957

Governmental
Activities

$

$

$

3,559,648
138,534,908
142,094,556

(31,304)
671,918

703,222

2,887,729

5,835,953
(2,963,352)
216,367
(201,239)
2,887,729

-

Business-type
Activities

$

$

$

8,971,127
208,281,733
2,773,607
220,026,468

5,269,287
7,770,928
4,452,167
2,256,631
220,479
1,156,406
(78,674)
321,536
97,453
21,466,213

(12,495,086)

5,835,953
(2,963,352)
216,367
(201,239)
2,887,729

(565,827)
(1,819,073)
(7,460,319)
(300,103)
(1,092,430)
(260,673)
(463,784)
(3,420,605)
(15,382,815)

Total

Net (Expense) Revenue & Changes in Net Assets

Change in Net Position
Net Position-Beginning
Change in Accounting Principle
Prior Period Adjustment
Net Position-Ending

$

$

Capital
Grants and
Contributions

5,269,287
7,770,928
4,452,167
2,256,631
220,479
453,184
(78,674)
321,536
128,757
20,794,294

27,282,604

11,013,321
6,137,459
1,580,376
4,699,342
23,430,498

3,852,107

115,768
1,811,899
463,190
87,385
56,947
936,512
380,405

Charges for
Services

Program Revenues
Operating
Grants and
Contributions

CITY OF ANACORTES
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December, 31 2020

Property taxes
Sales taxes
Utility taxes
Other taxes
Unrestricted grants & contributions
Investments earnings
Disposition of capital assets
Micellanous general revenue
Transfers, internal activities
Total general revenues and transfers

General revenues:

55,333,860

$

Total government

686,299
3,738,483
10,478,358
387,487
2,090,260
310,073
1,828,501
3,871,143
23,390,606

15,295,254
10,154,548
1,581,189
4,912,264
31,943,255

$

Expenses

Business-type activities:
Water
Sewer
Storm Drainage
Sanitaton
Total business-type activities

Functions/Program
Governmental activities:
Judicial
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Social Services
Economic environment
Culture and recreation
Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activities
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CITY OF ANACORTES
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2020

General
Fund
ASSETS
Cash
Investments
Receivables (net)

Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Payable other governments
Due to other funds
Retainage Payable
Deferred inflows of resources
Deposits payable
Matured bonds, notes, loans payable
Matured interest payable
Total Liabilities

Ambulance
Service Fund

Other
Governmental
Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

$

4,418,672
7,544,984
1,855,020

55,949
96,277
48,983

256,040
440,598
544,161

2,517,714 $
4,332,530
193,276

7,248,374
12,414,389
2,641,441

$

13,818,676

201,209

1,240,800

7,043,519 $

22,304,204

$

1,092,776
7,703
51,001
282,353
72,216
1,506,049

48,744
24
23,114
71,881

137,613
195
6,118
143,926

193,376 $
(0.0)
14,045
3,605
211,026 $

1,472,508
7,923
88,160
292,076
72,216
1,932,882

273,666
3,189,884
7,371,484
1,477,593
12,312,627

129,352
(24)
129,328

47,158
1,049,911
(195)
1,096,874

5,516,014
791,045
525,435
(0)
6,832,493

5,789,679
4,028,087
9,076,182
1,477,373
20,371,322

13,818,676 $

201,209

1,240,800

7,043,519 $

22,304,204

$

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Street
Maintenance Fund

$

Total Fund Balance for Governmental Funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and;
therefore, are not reported in the funds
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and;
therefore, are deferred in the funds
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet management to individual funds.
The assets and liabilities are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and;
therefore, are not reported in the funds

$ 20,371,322

Net assets of governmental activities

$ 77,931,912

49,255,402
5,202,387
15,152,540
(12,049,738)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF ANACORTES
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

General
Fund
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property
Sales
Utility
Other
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charge for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Other revenue
Total Revenues

$

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Judicial
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Social Services
Economic environment
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and debt issue costs
Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

4,355,857
7,148,899
4,079,980
421,059
1,003,368
1,420,174
1,967,314
116,182
195,207
289,947
20,997,987

(0)
372,188
338,951
6,947
12,852
881
107
731,924

Net change in fund balances

$

Ambulance
Service Fund

685,377
1,467,551
1,290,679
10,079
101
3,453,787

723,137
4,136,470
8,128,864
320,387
101,624
310,073
1,354,035
3,946,909
2,060,325

1,883,691
-

3,122,438
40,445

21,081,824

1,883,691

3,162,884

(83,836)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Refunding debt proceeds
Use of refunding debt proceeds
Capital Leases
Disposition of capital assets
Total other financing sources (uses)

Fund Balances - January 1
Change in Accounting Principle
Prior Period Adjustments
Fund Balances - December 31

Street
Maintenance Fund

(1,151,767)

363,295
(1,123,142)
5,970
(753,877)

1,287,142
1,287,142

(837,713)

135,375

10,601,784
2,548,556
12,312,627

$

$

(6,047) $
129,328 $

290,903

290,903
758,914 $
47,057
1,096,874 $

Other
Governmental
Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

228,052 $
622,029
(0)
1,496,622
0
1,274,973
295,106
104,546
28,108
4,049,435
89,817
216,086
127
2,560,258
2,866,287
1,183,149
1,290,656
(1,689,194)
(398,539)

5,269,287
7,770,928
4,452,167
2,256,631
1,010,315
4,175,550
3,553,098
116,182
310,713
318,262
29,233,134

723,137
4,136,470
11,251,303
320,387
2,075,131
310,073
1,570,121
3,947,036
4,661,028
28,994,685

238,449

2,941,093
(2,812,336)
5,970
134,726

784,610

373,175

5,869,889
177,994
6,832,493

17,224,539
2,773,607
20,371,322

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF ANACORTES
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Net Change in fund balances - total governmental funds
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is
the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

$

373,175

3,062,206

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e. sales, donations)
is to increase net assets
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as
revenues in the funds

10,798

192,385

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds,
while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net
effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet management to individual funds.
The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.
Change in net assets of governmental activities

-

333,121

1,439,794
5,411,480

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF ANACORTES
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2020

Water
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Investments
Restricted cash and investments
Capital reserve
Bond covenant accounts
Receivable (net)
Due from other funds
Inventory
Noncurrent Assets:
Pension assets
Capital assets
Land
Depreciable assets (net)
Construction in progress
Total Assets
Deferred Outflow of Resources
Pension
Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Compensated absences
Retainage payable
Lease deposit payable
Payable to other governments
Matured bonds, notes, loans payable
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Bonds, notes, loans payable
Pollution Remediation Liability
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Pension
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflow of Resources
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for capital reserve
Unrestricted
Total net position

Sewer

Storm Drain

Sanitation

Total
Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service Funds

3,892,660
6,698,562

1,864,104
3,207,785

87,146
149,962

851,409
1,465,121

6,695,319
11,521,429

3,478,263
5,985,460

10,496,830
863,038
2,274,106
40,000
292,153

9,401,785
862,919
-

407,234
180,476
-

498,448
-

20,305,848
863,038
3,815,949
40,000
292,153

1,921
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

988,410
115,187,645
8,247,814
148,981,218

786,247
26,331,745
945,505
43,400,089

294,947
9,075,373
4,635
10,199,771

209,795
3,024,773

2,069,603
150,804,557
9,197,954
205,605,851

10,384
5,824,069
2,674
15,302,770

215,770
149,196,988

193,087
43,593,176

60,946
10,260,717

70,938
3,095,711

540,741
206,146,591

32,112
15,334,882

1,043,250
6,088
77,143
86,731
2,793,779

411,616
6,506
29,237
7,500
12,227
148,737

47,836
40,000
1,479
2,092
2,368
-

244,196
2,716
15,540
-

1,746,897
40,000
16,789
108,472
7,500
116,866
2,942,516

43,364
252
4
-

115,671
684,074
40,489,989
5,895,477
51,192,200

123,610
618,428
9,952,391

28,110
196,674
318,559

318,998
1,731,550
50,442,380
6,061,102
63,533,070

4,788
103,025
-

11,310,253

51,607
232,374
165,625
712,058

204,587
51,396,788

185,956
11,496,209

59,467
378,027

68,955
781,013

518,966
64,052,036

30,910
182,342

81,140,102
863,038
10,496,830
5,300,231
97,800,200

17,962,369
9,401,785
4,732,814
32,096,967

9,374,954
407,234
100,502
9,882,690

209,795
2,104,904
2,314,698

108,687,220
863,038
20,305,848
12,238,450
142,094,556

5,837,126
9,315,413
15,152,540

151,433

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF ANACORTES
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Water
Operating revenues:
Charges for utility services
Charges for other services
Total operating revenue

Sewer

Storm Drain

Sanitation

Totals

Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service Funds

11,013,321

6,137,459

1,580,376

4,699,342

23,430,498

11,013,321

6,137,459

1,580,376

4,699,342

23,430,498

3,336,032
3,336,032

Operating expenses:
Maintenance and operations
In-lieu of tax
Administrative and general
Pension Expense
Depreciation
Pollution Remediation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

7,896,972
1,622,612
(178,475)
3,519,936
123,855
12,984,901
(1,971,580)

8,269,815
643,655
(234,836)
1,378,596
10,057,230
(3,919,771)

1,124,113
259,763
(103,142)
299,458
1,580,193
183

4,272,289
507,813
(45,651)
12,371
165,625
4,912,448
(213,106)

21,563,189
3,033,844
(562,104)
5,210,362
289,480
29,534,771
(6,104,273)

1,055,787
145,418
(38,089)
802,450
1,965,566
1,370,466

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Intergovernmental revenue
Investment earnings
Interest expense
Debt issuance costs
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Miscellaneous revenues (expenses)
Total nonoperating revenue (expense)

290,775
584,720
(2,328,088)
(13,376)
31,111
(1,434,859)

131,452
71,354
(98,666)
1,347
33,253
138,741

14,407
8,632
(948)
(48)
22,044

11,683
38,517
184
50,384

448,318
703,222
(2,427,702)
(11,893)
64,364
(1,223,690)

8,228
142,470
(84,644)
3,274
69,328

(3,406,439)

(3,781,029)

22,227

(162,722)

(7,327,963)

Income (loss) before
contributions and transfers
Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers out

9,827,111
-

Change in net position

6,420,672

(2,891,999)

91,379,528
97,800,200

34,988,966
32,096,967

Total net position - beginning
Change in Accounting Principles
Prior period correction
Total net position - ending

889,031
-

202,773
(31,304)
193,696
9,688,994
9,882,690

(162,722)
2,477,420
2,314,698

1,439,794

10,918,915
(31,304)

-

3,559,648

1,439,794

138,534,908
142,094,556

13,712,746
15,152,540

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Ctiy of Anacortes
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
Governmental
Activities

Business-Type Activities

Water Fund
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers and users
Receipts from interfund services provided
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments for interfund services used
Other cash received
Other cash paid

Sewer Fund

10,975,583
107,969
(4,344,593)
(2,793,216)
(1,753,673)
5,367
0

Net cash provided by operating activities

5,995,787
49,476
(3,418,343)
(2,851,710)
(267,620)
7,155
-

2,197,437

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Transfer to other funds
Advances from other funds
Subsidies from federal grants
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Proceeds from capital debt
Capital contributions received/(used)
Acquisitions of capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Proceeds from sales of capital assets

4,633,047
65,279
(3,044,331)
(1,156,262)
(574,982)
-

23,142,602
244,415
(11,077,436)
(7,723,257)
(2,790,864)
12,523
0

37,041
3,321,070
(691,175)
(499,770)
(85,544)
3,274
0

1,807,982

2,084,896

(77,248)

(40,000)
17,759

131,452

(31,304)
(20,000)
14,407

11,683

(31,304)
(60,000)
175,302

8,228

(22,241)

131,452

(36,897)

11,683

83,998

8,228

248,790
(174,303)
(948)
(48)

-

73,491

(8,512,754)
(569,854)
10,101,128
(98,666)
1,347
921,202

6,838,209
584,720

4,427,640
71,354

7,422,929

4,498,993

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash at beginning of year
Less: amount reported in restricted assets
Beginning cash - statement of net position

6,100,481
1,967,345
1,531,631
435,714

Cash at end of year
Less: amount reported in restricted assets
Ending cash - statement of net position

8,067,825
4,175,165
3,892,660

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

1,538,185
21,690
(270,169)
(922,070)
(194,589)
-

Internal Service
Fund

Totals

173,048

(3,497,644)

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds (purch) from sales/maturities of investments
Interest and dividends received

Sanitation Fund

(485,255)

273,016
21,582,120
(13,574,041)
(9,437,275)
(2,328,088)
(13,376)

Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities

Storm Drain

(8,420)
8,632

(0)
184

273,016
13,318,156
(14,318,198)
663,853
(2,427,702)
(11,893)

(566,919)
(84,644)

184

(2,502,767)

(651,563)

744,425
38,517

212

782,941

12,001,853
703,222
12,705,076

1,444,163
142,470

5,066,393
253,210
(0)
253,210

209,855
26,964
25,889
1,076

717,561
133,849
133,849

12,094,288
2,381,367
1,557,519
823,848

3,028,195
450,068
450,068

5,319,602
3,455,498
1,864,104

236,819
149,673
87,146

851,409
851,409

14,475,656
7,780,337
6,695,319

3,478,263
3,478,263

(213,106)

(6,104,273)

1,370,466

12,371
(1,016)
882

5,210,362
(93,584)
9,186
1,049
619,691
49,639
640
(67,057)
(495,687)
289,480
2,324,173
64,364

802,450
22,080
(718)

714,430

1,586,634

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities
Net operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation/Amortization
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in intergovernmental recvble
(Increase) decrease in due to/from other funds
(Increase) decrease in inventory
(Increase) in deposits paid
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences pay
Change in pension obligation
Change in deferred outflows
Change in deferred inflows
Change in pollution remediation
Impairment of Capital Asset
Other (includes prior period adjustment)

$

$

3,519,936
46,226
7,685

$

183

$

299,458
(20,501)
512

-

593,965
23,666
34,157
(35,013)
(177,619)
123,855

$

(3,919,771)
1,378,596
(118,294)
105

1,049

Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities

(1,971,580)

-

26,560
24,957
(26,647)
(17,440)
(190,749)

-

(1,038)
(2,425)
(29,969)
279
(73,452)

204
3,442
23,100
(14,883)
(53,867)
165,625

31,111

2,324,173
33,253

-

-

4,169,017

3,434,516

172,865

135,858

7,912,256

(77,248) $

1,807,982

2,197,437

$

(485,255)

$

173,048

$

(65,797)
(8,768)
(3,462)
(3,036)
(31,592)

3,274

$

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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2,084,896

CITY OF ANACORTES
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
December 31, 2020

Pension
Trust Fund
ASSETS
Cash
Investments
Receivables:
Total Assets

Custodial
Trust Funds

72,000
123,900
(0)
195,900

37,286
37,286

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other labilities
Do to local governments
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities

(0)
(0)

37,286
37,286

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
NET POSITION
Restricted for:
Pensions
Individuals, organizations, and other governments

195,900
195,900

-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF ANACORTES
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Pension
Trust Fund

Custodial
Trust Funds

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Taxes
Grants and donations
Other
Total contributions

33,877
33,877

-

Investment earnings

3,402

1,067

37,279

1,067

41,994
-

Total Additions

(0)
(0)

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits
Administrative expenses
Transfers Out
Total deductions

41,994

97,453
97,453

Change in net position

(4,715)

(96,386)

Net position - beginning
Change in Accounting Principle
Net position - ending

200,615
195,900

2,869,993
(2,773,607)
0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements of the City of Anacortes have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The significant accounting policies are described below.
REPORTING ENTITY
The City of Anacortes was incorporated on May 19, 1891 and operates under the laws of the State of
Washington applicable to a non-charter code city with a Mayor-Council form of government. As required by
GAAP, the financial statements present the City of Anacortes, the primary government, and its component
units. The City does not participate in any joint ventures.
GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net position and the statement of activities)
report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Our policy is to allocate indirect costs to a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements or a particular function or segment.
Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.
As a general rule the effect of the interfund activity has been eliminated in the government-wide financial
statements.
Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.
MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, similar to the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However,
debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.
Property taxes, licenses, and interest associated within the current period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the
portion of special assessments receivable that are due within the current fiscal period is considered to be
susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the City.
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The City reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund
Also known as the current expense fund, this fund is the City’s operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The
General Fund includes Police, Fire, Finance, Planning, Building, Fiber, Parks, Cemetery, and Library
services. Primary resources of the General Fund are taxes, including property tax, sales tax, and utility tax.
Street Maintenance Fund
This fund accounts for funding and expenditures for road maintenance. Primary resources of the Street
Maintenance Fund are property taxes, motor vehicle fuel tax, utility tax, and operating transfers.
Ambulance Service Fund
This fund accounts for all funding and expenditures for the ambulance portion of the fire department.
Primary resources of the Ambulance Service Fund include property tax, sales tax, Emergency Medical
Services special levy property tax, and charges for ambulance services.
Proprietary Funds
The City reports the following major enterprise funds: Water, Sewer, Storm Drain, and Sanitation. These
funds account for operations that provide goods or services to the general public and are supported
primarily through user charges.
Additionally the city reports the following fund types:
Special Revenue Funds
These funds account for revenues derived from specific taxes, grants, or other sources which are
designated to finance particular activities of the City.
Capital Projects Funds
These funds account for financial resources, which are designated for the acquisition or construction of
general government capital improvements.
Internal Service Funds
Internal Service Funds accounts for operations that provide goods or services to other departments or funds
of the City or to other governmental units on a cost-reimbursement basis.
Fiduciary Funds
The pension trust fund is used to account for the operations of a trust established for employee retirement
benefits.
The custodial funds are used to account for situations where the city’s role is purely custodial, for the receipt,
temporary investment, and remittance of resources to another entity.
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers, 2) operating grants and
contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenues rather than program revenues. General revenues include all
taxes.
The proprietary fund statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and fullaccrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when liability
is incurred regardless of the timing of the cash flows.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
utility funds are charges to customers. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, the City will use restricted resources
first, and then unrestricted resources as needed.
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BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING
Scope of Budget
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general, special revenue, and for all proprietary funds
on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Budgets for debt service and capital project funds are
adopted at the level of the individual debt issue or project and for fiscal periods that correspond to the
lives of debt issues or projects.
Other budgets are adopted at the level of the fund, except in the general (current expense) fund, where
expenditures may not exceed appropriations at the department level and the budgets constitute the legal
authority for expenditures at that level.
Appropriations for general and special revenue funds lapse at the end of the year (except for
appropriations for capital outlays, which are carried forward from year to year until fully expended or the
purpose of the appropriation has been accomplished or abandoned).
Amending the Budget
The mayor is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; however, any
revisions that alter the total expenditures of a fund, or that affect the number of authorized employee
positions, salary ranges, hours, or other conditions of employment must be approved by the City Council.
When the City Council determines that it is in the best interest of the City to increase or decrease the
appropriation for a particular fund, it may do so by ordinance approved by one more than the majority during
a public meeting.
The budget amounts shown in the financial statements are the final authorized amounts as revised during
the year.
The financial statements contain the original and final budget information. The original budget is the first
complete appropriated budget. The final budget is the original budget adjusted by all reserves, transfers,
allocations, supplemental appropriations and other legally authorized changes applicable for the fiscal year.
ASSETS, LIABILITIES, FUND BALANCE, NET POSITION
Cash
It is the City's policy to invest all temporary cash surpluses. At December 31, 2020, the treasurer was
holding $30,875,181 in short-term residual investments of surplus cash. This amount is classified on the
balance sheet as cash in various funds. The interest on these investments is prorated to various funds.
The City maintained no compensating balances in 2020.
Investments
See Note 3.
Receivables
Taxes receivable consists of property taxes and related interest and penalties (See Property Tax Note 6).
Accrued interest receivable consists of amounts earned on investments, notes, and contracts at the end of
the year.
Special assessments are recorded when levied. Special assessments receivable consist of current and
delinquent assessments and related interest and penalties. Deferred assessments consist of unbilled
special assessments that are liens against the property benefited. As of December 31, 2020 there were no
special assessments.
Customer accounts receivable consists of amounts owed from private individuals or organizations for goods
and services including amounts owed for which billings have not been prepared. The city has established
an allowance for doubtful accounts for receivables turned over to collections; the city reports net receivables
on its reports. Notes and contracts receivable consist of amounts owed on open account from private
individuals or organizations for good and services rendered.
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Amounts Due to and from Other Funds and Governments, Interfund Loans and Advances
Receivable
Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end
of the year are referred to as either “interfund loans receivable/payable” or “advances to/from other funds.”
All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements as internal balances. A separate schedule of interfund loans
receivable and payable is furnished in Note 10 of this report.
Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are
not expendable available financial resources.
Inventories
Inventories in governmental funds and all enterprise funds other than water fund, consist of expendable
supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as expenditures at the time individual inventory items
are purchased.
Inventories in the water enterprise fund are valued by the weighted average method which approximates
the market value. Inventory checks are completed bimonthly by choosing 20 random parts and counting
them. A complete physical inventory is performed at year end. No significant discrepancies were found in
2020.
Restricted Assets and Liabilities
These accounts contain resources for debt service and enterprise funds. Specific debt service reserve
requirements are described in Note 8. The current portion of liabilities payable from restricted assets are
shown as Matured Bonds, Notes, and Loans Payable.
The restricted assets of the enterprise funds are composed of the following:
Cash and Investments – Debt Service
$ 863,038
Cash and Investments – Capital Projects
$ 20,305,848
Capital Assets and Depreciation (See Note 4)
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets
are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.
Costs for additions or improvements to capital assets are capitalized when they increase the effectiveness
or efficiency of the asset.
The costs for normal maintenance and repairs are not capitalized.
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of the capital assets of business-type activities is included as part
of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.
Property, plant, and equipment of the City is depreciated using the straight line method over the following
estimated useful lives:
Buildings:
Other Improvements:
Water/Sewer Lines
Other Structures & Fixtures
Equipment:
Vehicles & Heavy Equipment
Office & Computing Equipment
Other Equipment

20-50 years
30-50 years
15-50 years
5-20 years
3-10 years
5-35 years
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Deferred Inflows/Outflows
Deferred inflows include amounts recognized as receivables but not revenues in governmental funds
because the revenue recognition criterion has not been met.
Compensated Absences
Compensated absences (accrued employee benefits) are absences for which employees will be paid, such
as vacation and sick leave. The City records all accumulated unused vacation leave hours. Vacation leave
accumulates from 12 to 25.5 days annually (and may be accumulated up to a maximum of 22 to 30 days)
depending on tenure and is payable upon resignation, retirement, or death. Sick leave accumulates at 12
days annually until a maximum of 180 days is reached. For teamster and management employees, unused
sick leave is paid out only upon retirement, paid at 0, 18 or 25 percent of their balance based on the amount
of unused hours they have banked. Commissioned police employees may receive a cash buy out in an
amount equal to 50% of their then existing sick leave accrual balance up to a maximum of 500 hours. In
addition, commissioned police members may increase the percentage of their sick leave payout at
retirement by earning fitness evaluation credits of up to 3% each year. IAFF fire employees may receive a
cash buy out in an amount equal to 25% of their then existing sick leave accrual balance. In addition, IAFF
members may increase the percentage of their sick leave payout at retirement by earning fitness evaluation
credits of up to 3% each year. Firefighters can bank up to 350 hours in their vacation leave bank.
Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability or asset, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position
of all state sponsored pension plans and additions to/deductions from those plans’ fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Washington State Department of
Retirement Systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.
Long-term Debt
See Note 8.
Fund Balance Classification
The City’s fund balances are classified in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 54 (GASB 54), Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type definitions, which
requires the City to classify its fund balances based on spending constraints imposed on the use of
resources. Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:
Non-spendable – amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form (such as
inventory), or legally or contractually required to remain intact (such as notes or interfund receivables).
Restricted – amounts constrained by external parties, constitutional provision, or enabling legislation.
Effectively, restrictions may only be changed or lifted with the consent of the resource provider.
Committed – amounts formally constrained by a government using its highest level of decision-making
authority (City Council). The commitment of these funds can only be changed by the government taking
the same formal action (ordinance) that imposed the constraint originally.
Assigned – amounts that are constrained by the City’s expressed intent to use resources for specific
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. The City Council has the
authority to assign amounts intended to be used for specific purposes. The City Council also delegates to
the Mayor the authority to assign amounts intended to be used for specific purposes. The assignment
cannot exceed the available fund balance in any fund. With the exception of the General Fund, this is the
residual fund balance of the classification of all governmental funds with positive balances.
Unassigned – residual amounts that are otherwise not constrained at all will be reported in the general
fund. These are technically available for any purpose. Only the General Fund can report a positive
“unassigned fund balance”.
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The City considers restricted fund balance to be spent when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for
which restricted and unrestricted fund balances are available unless prohibited by legal constraints or
contracts. When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which committed, assigned or unassigned
amounts are available; the City considers committed fund balance to be spent first, then assigned fund
balance, and lastly unassigned fund balance.
City council adopted ordinance 2995 in 2016 which established emergency reserve funds, also referred to
as the Economic Stabilization Reserve Fund, or rainy day fund, within the General fund, and each of the
enterprise utility funds. The General fund reserve is established for use by the General fund, and other
governmental operating funds. The reserve is to be set at an amount equal to 20% of the expenditures of
the following operating funds: 001, 101, 102, 103, 104, 107, and 110. The reserve balances in the utilities
are to be set at 10% of the annual revenues of the funds, the utilities reserves resides within their own
fund. The use of these reserve funds must be authorized by a majority plus one of the City Council
members, and replenished within three years of use.
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NOTE 2 – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE
SHEET AND THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
The governmental funds’ balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance – total
governmental funds and net position – governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of net position.
The Capital Assets reconciling amount is the total of Land, Depreciable Assets, and Construction in
Process of the Governmental Funds. The Long Term Liabilities reconciling amount is the employee
vacation liability, and Net Pension Obligation.
EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES AND THE
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
The governmental funds’ statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes
a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances – total governmental funds and changes in net
position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities.
The Expenses reconciling amount is the total of the change in employee vacation liability, and the
change in Net Pension Obligation.

Page 39

Note 3- Deposits and Investments
A. Deposits
It is the policy of the City of Anacortes to invest public funds in a manner which will maximize
investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow demands of the entity
and conforming to all state and local statutes governing the investment of public funds. Cash is and
can be invested by fund and commingled in a common investment portfolio. Municipal corporations are
empowered by statute to invest eligible investments enabled by legislation contained in RCW
39.59.020, 35.39.030, 43.84.080, 43.250.040. Investments in Local Government Investment that are in
restricted accounts are reported as investments.
The City’s deposits and certificates of deposit are entirely covered by federal depository insurance
(FDIC) or by collateral held in a multiple financial institution collateral pool administered by the
Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission (PDPC).
Custodial credit risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in event of a failure of a depository financial
institution, the City would not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in possession of an outside party. Of the City’s total position of $43,194,219 in 2020,
$0 is exposed to custodial credit risk because the investments are held by the City’s brokerage firm,
which is also the counterparty in those particular securities.
B. Investments
Investments are subject to the following risks.
Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk the City may face should interest rate variances affect
the fair value of investments. The City does not have a formal policy that addresses interest rate risk,
however the City’s investment policy addresses portfolio structure which is intended to reduce interest
rate risk.

Investment Type
Debt Securities
U.S. Treasuries
U.S. Treasury Strips
U.S. Agencies
Municipal Debt
Total Debt Securities

Investment Maturities (In Years)
Fair Value
Less Than 1
1 to 5
$

1,698,492

$

3,246,633 $

14,736,916

$

4,945,125 $

14,736,916

Credit risk. Credit risk is the chance that an issuer will fail to pay principal or interest in a timely manner,
or that negative perceptions of the issuer’s ability to make these payments will cause the price of the
investment to decline. The City’s investment policy applies the prudent person standard; Investments
will be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which a person of
prudence, discretion and intelligence would use in the management of their own affairs, not for
speculation, but for investment purposes.
Concentration of Credit Risk. The City diversifies its investments by security type and institution. 100%
of the City’s portfolio may be invested in US Treasury Notes, Bonds or Certificates, or the State
Investment Pool. With the exception of U.S. Treasury securities and authorized pools, the City’s
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investment policy does not allow for an investment in any one issuer that is in excess of 50% of the City’s
total investment portfolio.
Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk. The City does not invest in any form of foreign currency
denomination. While the City does have customers who pay invoices to the city in foreign funds, these
transactions are translated and converted into U.S dollars in an amount equal to the original invoice price
prior to being received by the City. Accordingly, the City has no exposure to foreign currency risk.
Investments in Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP): The City is a participant in the Local
Government Investment Pool was authorized by Chapter 294, Laws of 1986, and is managed and
operated by the Washington State Treasurer. The State Finance Committee is the administrator of the
statute that created the pool and adopts rules. The State Treasurer is responsible for establishing the
investment policy for the pool and reviews the policy annually and proposed changes are reviewed by
the LGIP advisory Committee.
Investments in the LGIP, a qualified external investment pool, are reported at amortized cost which
approximates fair value. The LGIP is an unrated external investment pool. The pool portfolio is invested
in a manner that meets the maturity, quality, diversification and liquidity requirements set forth by the
GASBS 79 for external investments pools that elect to measure, for financial reporting purposes,
investments at amortized cost. The LGIP does not have any legally binding guarantees of share values.
The LGIP does not impose liquidity fees or redemption gates on participant withdrawals.
The Office of the State Treasurer prepares a stand-alone LGIP financial report. A copy of the report is
available from the Office of the State Treasurer, PO Box 40200, Olympia, Washington 98504-0200,
online at http://www.tre.wa.gov.
Investments Measured at Amortized Cost
As of December 31, 2020, the City had the following cash and investments at amortized cost:

Cash at Amortized Cost
FDIC or PDPC insured bank deposits
Petty Cash on hand
Total Cash

Amortized Cost
$
25,187,459
$
3,640
$
25,191,099
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Investments Measured at Fair Value
The City of Anacortes measures and reports investments at fair value using the valuation input
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles, as follows:
x
x
x

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: These are quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices for
identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or other than quoted prices
that are not observable;
Level 3: Unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.

As of December 31, 2020, the City had the following cash and investments at fair value:

Fair Value Measurement Using

Investments by Fair Value Level
WA State LGIP

U.S. Treasury bills, notes & bonds
Municipal Securities
U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprises
FFCB
FHLB
FHLMC
FNMA
Other GSE’s
Total Investments by Fair Value Level

Total
$
23,512,178
$
1,698,492
$
$
$
$
$

6,455,292
6,243,594
5,284,663

$

43,194,219

Quoted Prices in
Significant
Active Markets Significant Other
Observable Inputs Unobservable
for Identical
Inputs (Level 3)
Assets (Level 1) (Level 2)
$
23,512,178
$
1,698,492
$
$
$
6,455,292
$
6,243,594
$
$
5,284,663
$
$
43,194,219
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2020 was as follows:
A. Capital Assets - Governmental Activities
Balance
1/1/2020

Increases

Decreases

Balance
12/31/2020

Governmental Activities
Assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in Progress
Total not being depreciated

21,849,670
739,017
22,588,686

508,866
508,866

397,541
397,541

21,849,670
850,342
22,700,012

Depreciated Assets
Buildings & Structures
Improvements & Infrastructure
Machinery & Equipment
Total being depreciated

16,011,945
34,747,099
15,257,352
66,016,395

5,345
2,294,244
3,057,047
5,356,636

53,544
614,488
668,032

16,017,289
36,987,798
17,699,911
70,704,999

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & Structures *
Improvements & Infrastructure *
Machinery & Equipment *
Total accumulated depreciation

6,659,220
22,538,718
7,152,087
36,350,025

422,014
1,073,631
1,046,946
2,542,592

87,457
492,678
580,135

7,081,234
23,524,892
7,706,356
38,312,482

Total assets being depreciated, net

29,666,369

2,814,044

87,897

32,392,517

Governmental activities assets, net

52,255,056

3,322,910

485,437

55,092,528

B. Capital Assets - Business-Type Activities
Balance
1/1/2020
Business-Type Activities
Assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in Progress
Total not being depreciated

Increases

Decreases

Balance
12/31/2020

1,562,195
3,388,986
4,951,181

507,408
6,765,490
7,272,898

956,522
956,522

2,069,603
9,197,954
11,267,558

69,460,322
450,823
124,905,047
34,681,364
229,497,556

200,392
23,910
7,401,134
397,740
8,023,177

193,984
151,970
345,954

69,660,714
474,733
132,112,198
34,927,134
237,174,779

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & Structures *
Intangible Assets *
Improvements & Infrastructure *
Machinery & Equipment *
Total being depreciated

12,557,005
44,063
48,586,698
17,972,519
79,160,285

1,386,545
7,344
4,947,095
1,201,526
7,542,510

175,287
157,287
332,574

13,943,550
51,407
53,358,505
19,016,759
86,370,221

Total assets being depreciated, net

150,337,271

480,667

13,380

150,804,557

Business-Type activities assets, net

155,288,452

7,753,565

969,902

162,072,115

Depreciated Assets
Buildings & Structures
Intangible Assets
Improvements & Infrastructure
Machinery & Equipment
Total being depreciated

*adjusted for change in accounting principle
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:
Governmental Activities
$
3,515
$
161,800
$
393,027
$
122,186
$
265,590
$
556,965
$
1,039,510

Judicial
General Government
Public Safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Economic Environment
Culture & Recreation

Total Depreciation - Governmental Activities

Utilities

$

2,542,592

Business Type Activities
$
5,210,362

Total Depreciation - Business-Type Activities

$

5,210,362

Accumulated depreciation on propriety fund assets at December 31, 2020 is as follows:
Enterprise
Internal Service
Funds
Funds
Totals
Buildings & Structures
$ 13,943,550
466,075
14,409,625
Intangible Assets
51,407
51,407
Improvements & Infrastructure
53,358,505
41,941
53,400,447
Machinery & Equipment
19,016,759
6,333,301
25,350,060
Total

$

86,370,221

$

6,841,317

$

93,211,539

C. Collections Not Capitalized
The City of Anacortes does not capitalize the collections of the Anacortes Museum or the public art located
throughout City parks and buildings. In both cases the purpose of the collection is display or research, the
collection is being adequately maintained, and any proceeds from the sale of collection items are applied to
acquiring new items for the same collection.
D. Impaired Capital Assets
City of Anacortes determined that a sewer outfall pipe was impairment due to new environmental
standards and regulations. This resulted in a one time impairment loss expense of $ 2,324,173.36.
E. Discretely Presented Component Unit(s)
None.
F. Interest Capitalization
During the fiscal year ending December 31, 2020 the City of Anacortes incurred and charged to expense a
total of $2,328,087.93 of interest cost for the Anacortes Water Treatment Plant Improvements
(401.711.592.34.80). Of this amount, $273,016.16 was offset by an ARRA Bond Interest Subsidy
(401.730.332.21.20). No interest cost was capitalized.
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NOTE 5- CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS
A. Construction Commitments
The City of Anacortes has active construcition projects as of December 31, 2020 that include the following
commitments with contractors:
Project

Spent to Date

Remaining
Commitment

SHIP HARBOR AND SR20 SPUR INTER16-025-TRN-003
DC PLANT & BATTERIES INSTALLATIO18-114-FAC-001
PAVING A PORTION OF Q AVENUE
18-151-DCM-001
SENIOR CENTER METAL ROOF INSTA19-066-FAC-001
GRANDVIEW CEMETERY EXPANSION 19-092-PRK-002
MUNICIPAL BROADBAND NETWORK - 19-175-FBR-003
GUEMES CHANNEL TRAIL MAINTENAN19-195-PRK-001
2020 WATERLINE REPLACEMENTS 20-010-WTR-001
SKAGIT RIVER RAW WATER PIPELINE20-048-WTR-001
WTP TEGG REPAIRS
20-065-WTR-001
RELOCATE BUCKETS FOR TEGG REP20-065-WTR-002
DEPOT PLAZA RESTROOM
20-069-PRK-003
FLOORING FOR FINANCE/PARKS ARE20-159-FAC-001
2020 ASPHALT OVERLAY PROJECT 20-192-TRN-001
ELECTRICAL SUPPORT FOR MCC REC20-225-WTR-001
SCRUBBER DUCTING REPAIR
20-226-SEW-001
WWTP SCRUBBER DUCTING REPAIR 20-226-SEW-002

1,373,746
31,043
0
249,400
136,707
512,134
11,086
1,190,540
10,696,572
0
0
26,596
0
0
0
3,103
0

101,573
42
4,818
5,740
96,573
15,815
32,914
49,334
978,986
7,477
15,016
34,246
13,668
446,190
1,530
1,572
15,624

Total

14,230,927

1,821,118

B. Other Commitments
At year end the City's other contract commitments are as follows:
Project
LEGAL RESEARCH PROGRAM
02-003-LEG-001
FUNDING AGREEMENT - BOYS & GIRL08-048-ADM-001
GUEMES CHANNEL TRAIL 30% DESIG 14-023-TRN-001
GUEMES CHANNEL TRAIL 30% DESIG 14-028-TRN-001
FIBER OPTIC TELEMETRY HPDE FITT 14-056-IDS-011
ON CALL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES A15-009-SEW-001
ON CALL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES A15-010-WTR-001
SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR STREAMI 15-092-EXE-001
WATER SYSTEM MODEL UPDATE
16-024-WTR-001
CRITICAL AREAS REGULATIONS UPDA16-082-IDS-003
CODIFICATION SERVICES
17-044-LEG-001
ON-CALL ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES17-051-PLN-002
ON-CALL STORMWATER ENGINEERIN17-051-PLN-003
ANIMAL LICENSING SERVICES
17-093-FIN-001
PILOT-SCALE AND FULL-SCALE TEST 17-110-WTR-002
AGING MASTERY PROGRAM ADMINIS18-053-SEN-001
SKAGIT RIVER 42" WATER LINE PROJ 18-070-WTR-001
DNR AQUATIC LAND LEASE - WWTP O18-071-SEW-001
GUEMES CHANNEL TRAIL - COMPLIAN18-145-TRN-001
GUEMES CHANNEL TRAIL - TECHNICA18-145-TRN-002

Spent to Date
7,772
6,420
85,733
128,743
190,274
139,418
83,785
21,787
22,900
26,387
14,564
33,431
32,154
16,818
27,752
7,563
81,311
8,718
23,427
7,657

Remaining
Commitment
21,556
3,580
20,297
1,174
12,888
25,582
3,215
16,329
6,186
13,613
1,366
16,569
17,846
1,182
2,248
2,438
17,317
20,410
6,253
15,579
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GUEMES CHANNEL TRAIL - BIOLOGIC18-145-TRN-003
WWTP SAMPLING AND ANALYSIS PLA18-147-SEW-001
SANITARY SEWER STORAGE STUDY 18-179-SEW-001
SANITARY SEWER STORAGE STUDY 18-179-SEW-003
32ND AND M INTERSECTION - DESIGN19-002-TRN-001
32ND AND H INTERSECTION - DESIGN19-002-TRN-002
MARCH POINT ROADWAY STREET LIG19-007-TRN-003
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICE19-015-IDS-001
2019-2020 JANITORIAL SERVICES
19-022-FAC-001
WTP CONTROLS MODIFICATIONS PR 19-031-WTR-003
MIDDLE SCHOOL LIGHTING UPGRADE19-043-ENG-001
DIRECT INTERNET ACCESS (DIA) SER19-045-FBR-002
ON-CALL STORMWATER SITE REVIEW19-046-PLN-001
WTP & WATER DISTRIBUTION UNIFOR19-050-WTR-001
2019-2020 HVAC CONTROL SYSTEMS 19-055-FAC-001
2019-2020 GIS SUPPORT
19-094-ENG-001
COMMERCIAL AVE CORRIDOR PLAN P19-095-TRN-001
COMMERCIAL AVE CORRIDOR PLAN P19-095-TRN-002
PERIODIC REVIEW OF SHORELINE MA19-111-PLN-001
GUEMES CHANNEL TRAIL TALL WALL19-146-PRK-002
2019-2020 AUTOMATIC DOORS ANNUA19-158-FAC-001
2020 SKAGIT LIBRARIES STAFF DEVE 19-176-LIB-001
MUNICIPAL BROADBAND INSTALLATIO19-181-FBR-003
FIDALGO AVENUE CULVERT REPAIR -19-191-STM-001
2020-2022 CARTEGRAPH SOLUTIONS 20-005-ENG-001
2020 PLANTATION RIFLE RANGE USE 20-011-APD-001
NPDES PHASE II PUBLIC OUTREACH A20-012-STM-001
2020 PROSECUTOR SERVICES
20-019-LEG-001
2020 BLS OTEP TRAINER
20-027-AFD-001
2020 SKAGIT DOMESTIC VIOLENCE & 20-028-APD-001
2020 COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY O20-029-PLN-001
2020 EDASC SERVICES AGREEMENT 20-030-PLN-001
WWTP OUTFALL PRE-DESIGN
20-032-SEW-001
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT O20-032-SEW-002
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT O20-032-SEW-003
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT O20-032-SEW-007
2020 LIVE FIRE TRAINING
20-034-AFD-001
FIREEYE UPGRADES
20-038-ITS-001
OSPINSIGHT DEPLOYMENT
20-039-FBR-001
SHORETEL SUPPORT AGREEMENT 20-041-ITS-001
SKAGIT RIVER RAW WATER PIPELINE20-048-WTR-002
SKAGIT RIVER RAW WATER PIPELINE20-048-WTR-003
SKAGIT RIVER RAW WATER PIPELINE20-048-WTR-004
ON-SITE ARC FLASH TRAINING SEMIN20-050-IDS-001
SWITCHGEAR DE-ENERGIZED PREVE20-056-WTR-001
LONGVIEW AVENUE REPAIRS - CRITIC20-057-ENG-002
DEPOT PLAZA RESTROOM - ENGINEE20-069-PRK-001
DEPOT PLAZA RESTROOM - CXT CON20-069-PRK-002
AMBULANCE PURCHASE
20-070-ERR-001
PASS LAKE 10" WATERLINE DESIGN 20-071-WTR-001
GARBAGE TOTES PURCHASE
20-074-SAN-002
2020 ANACORTES COMMUNITY HEAL 20-098-PLN-001
AGREEMENT FOR FUNDING AND CON20-105-PRK-001
VALUE LINE SOFTWARE LICENSE
20-109-LIB-001
WIRELESS TOWER BUSINESS ADVICE20-114-PRK-001
VOLUNTEER PARK/SMILEY'S BOTTOM20-115-PLN-001
ON-CALL TRANSPORTATION ENGINEE20-119-PLN-001

20,512
19,287
304,718
21,612
38,283
1,917
2,376
25,625
101,163
121,327
0
11,759
2,127
4,592
20,468
11,603
173,647
3,301
41,740
36,099
3,652
771
14,403
51,541
96,093
0
14,605
0
650
0
0
7,500
119,958
822,557
173,052
0
0
0
19,788
0
355,970
3,119
10,129
0
0
0
21,938
0
0
77,527
0
0
0
0
0
6,883
7,392

3,232
1,621
75,972
7,060
374
4,437
3,543
74,375
28,117
48,750
1,877
162,958
17,873
8,908
2,132
397
193,383
21,670
2,569
11,341
3,656
2,313
2,138
12,590
21,494
6,422
4,667
75,660
3,350
3,500
10,000
7,500
20,042
175,088
111,555
992,523
3,478
43,706
1,722
43,744
51,830
42,531
42,131
13,709
18,339
7,000
7,662
186,239
243,978
5,873
2,637
1,500
34,800
1,795
2,500
830
2,608

R AVENUE LONG-TERM IMPROVEMEN20-127-TRN-001
HYPER-CONVERGED SERVER CLUST 20-130-ITS-001

0
0

608,500
89,841
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FIBER INTERCONNECTION AGREEME20-135-FBR-001
WATER SYSTEM RISK & RESILIENCE 20-150-WTR-001
GUEMES CHANNEL TRAIL FLOOD WA 20-153-STM-001
WWTP NPDES SEDIMENT SAMPLING 20-163-SEW-001
CONSERVATION EASEMENT UPDATE 20-173-PRK-001
MARKETING SUPPORTING A SAFE RE20-174-PLN-001
WTP PUMP CALIBRATIONS
20-178-WTR-001
KNOWBE4 SECURITY AWARENESS TR20-181-ITS-001
COMMERICAL AVE KING NEW RETRO20-188-RES-001
PARK IMPACT FEE UPDATE
20-189-PRK-001
PRI TO SIP
20-193-ITS-002
SUBSTATION TRANSFORMER OIL SAM20-201-WTR-001
GENERATOR RENTAL FOR WTP
20-210-WTR-001
WHISTLE LAKE DAM ASSESSMENT 20-213-ENG-001
BAS TRAIN DIRTY POWER AND METE 20-218-WTR-001
F4 BASIN MODELING 2020
20-223-STM-001
SUPPORT LOCAL PLATFORM
20-227-PLN-001
COA INCINERATOR MERCURY SAMPL20-228-SEW-001
LAKESIDE QUARRY AERIAL SURVEY 20-230-PRK-001
ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER AGREE20-235-MUS-001
NPDES PHASE II PUBLIC OUTREACH A21-008-STM-001
DIGITAL AERIAL PHOTOS
21-067-ENG-001
STAFFING SERVICES FOR GROWTH MC20160030
PROVISION OF COMMUNITY SERVICEC20170369
INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMIL232
Total
Encumberances by Funds
General Fund
Water Fund
Sewer Fund
Storm Fund
Solid Waste Fund
Equipment Service Fund

4,110
38,844
6,304
55,613
0
11,600
0
0
0
10,789
0
0
0
0
1,432
4,635
0
0
0
0
0
0
14,057
100,445
476,667

2,557
61,286
26,340
20,967
7,500
18,900
2,520
4,108
8,281
6,186
3,490
1,221
689
28,132
537
2,765
5,000
3,920
5,060
810
19,272
5,531
17,898
56,925
70,549

4,460,792

4,186,112

2,745,683
1,443,524
1,501,456
67,186
5,402
243,978
6,007,230
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NOTE 6 - PROPERTY TAXES
The Skagit county treasurer acts as an agent to collect property taxes levied in the
county for all taxing authorities.
Property Tax Calendar
January 1

Taxes are levied and become an enforceable lien against
properties.

February 14

Tax bills are mailed by county treasurer.

April 30

First of two equal installment payments is due.

May 31

Assessed value of property established for next year's levy
at 100% of market value.

October 31

Second installment is due.

Property taxes are recorded as a receivable when levied, offset by deferred inflow.
Property tax revenues are recognized when cash is collected. The amount of taxes
receivable at year-end that would be collected soon enough to pay liabilities of the current
period is immaterial. No allowance for uncollectible taxes is established because
delinquent taxes are considered fully collectible.
The City may levy up to $3.375 per $1,000 of assessed valuation for general governmental
services. Washington State Constitution and Washington State law, RCW 84.55.010, limit
the rate.
The City's regular levy for 2020 was $1.3289 per $1,000 on an assessed valuation of
$3,985,572,170 for a total regular levy of $5,296,453.
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NOTE 7 – LEASES
Operating Leases:
City of Anacortes is preparing to measure lease obligations under GASB 87. However, it has not early
implemented GASB 87; thus the results presented here follow the old guidance.
Fire Station 3: The City of Anacortes is leasing a building serving as the temporary fire station #3. Total
cost for this lease was $ 27,345 for the year ending December 31, 2020. The lease started Aug 1, 2020
and will continue through July 31, 2022. Unless a new lease will be signed before the existing lease
expires, the City will then operate on a month to month rental.
Aquatic Lands Lease 22-A02664: The City of Anacortes is leasing aquatic lands from DNR under a 17
year lease which started January 3, 2017 and will continue through January 2, 2034. Total cost for this
lease was $ 41,969.50 for the year ending December 31, 2020. The amount is adjusted annually based in
the Seattle/Tacoma CPI until 2034. In turn, the City leases out these lands under two 17 year leases with
R&S Management and Fidalgo Marina, recovering 47% of the City lease expenditures each year.
Aquatic Lands Lease C2000076615: The City of Anacortes is leasing aquatic lands from DNR under a
30 year lease. Total cost for this lease was $ 4,096.89 for the year ending December 31, 2020. The
lease started Sept 1, 2006 and will continue through August 31, 2036. The commitment for each year
until 2034 is $ 4,096.89 annually, indexed for inflation. City of Anacortes leases out these tidelands to
Port of Anacortes at cost under a 30 year inter local agreement (IL057) which began in 2006.
Using a 2% incremental borrowing rate, City of Anacortes expects the following minimum lease payments
and lease receipts:
Year Ending December 31
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026-2036

Projected Lease Expenditures
$ 74,528
$ 63,871
$ 48,013
$ 48,973
$ 49,953
$ 502,528

Projected Lease Revenues
$ 24,537
$ 25,028
$ 25,529
$ 26,039
$ 26,560
$ 269,779
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NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT
LONG TERM DEBT
General Obligation Bonds are a direct obligation of the City for which its full faith and credit are
pledged. Debt service is paid from the related Debt Service Funds. Debt service for voter-approved
issues is funded by special property tax levies. Debt service for City Council authorized or
councilmanic issues is funded from regular property taxes and real estate excise taxes. Revenue
Bonds are payable from revenues generated by the Water and Sewer Funds.
State of Washington Public Works Trust Fund Loans are a direct responsibility of the City.
Anacortes currently has two such loans, they were obtained to aid in the construction of the water
treatment plant, and are being repaid from water revenues. The first was a $1 million loan obtained
in 2010 to aid in the design of the plant. The second loan for the treatment plant was obtained in
2012 for $10 million.
The City is also liable for loan balances due for a Drinking Water loan through the Department of
Commerce. This loan was to pay for the replacement of a 3 million gallon water reservoir on Blue
Heron Circle. The loan was finalized in 2019 with a balance of $4.4 million.
Revenue Bonds
2010 Water Revenue Bonds: Issued to finance the upgrade and expansion of the Water Utility
water treatment plant, and related facilities. Proceeds were also used to fund the bond’s debt
reserve account. This bond was defeased through combination of refunding bond from the 2020
Utility bond, and use of cash reserves. As such, this bond no longer has an active balance.
2012 Water Revenue Bonds: Issued to finance the upgrade and expansion of the Water Utility
water treatment plant, and related facilities. Proceeds were also used to fund the bond’s debt
reserve account.
2017 Water Revenue Bonds: Issued to refund the 2007 Water Revenue bonds that were issued
to finance the replacement of segment 5 and 6 from 24” to 36” water transmission line.
2020 Utility Revenue Bonds: Issued to refund part of the 2010 Water Revenue Bonds, provide
funding for the Water Utility to install a new raw water line and clearwell, and provide funding for
the Sewer Utility for a new Wastewater Treatment Plant outfall.
Government Loans
2010 Public Works Trust Fund Loan: Obtained to help pay for the design of a new water
treatment plant.
2012 Public Works Trust Fund Loan: Obtained to help pay for the construction of a new water
treatment plant.
2019 Drinking Water Loan: Obtained to replace a three million gallon water reservoir.

Revenue debt
2010 Water

Interest Rate
*.98 to 6.47%

Original
Amount
Issued
44,300,000

Redemptions
to Date
44,300,000

Amount
Outstanding
12/31/20
0

Issue Date
11/10/2010

Maturity Date
12/1/2030

2012 Water Revenue

8/15/2012

12/1/2032

3.09%

12,320,000

3,980,000

8,340,000

2017 Water Revenue

12/28/2017

12/1/2026

1.98%

6,635,000

2,350,000

4,285,000

PWTF Loan 2010
Water

10/1/2011

7/1/2029

0.50%

1,000,000

593,750

406,250

PWTF Loan 2012
Water

6/14/2012

6/1/2031

0.50%

10,000,000

4,210,526

5,789,474

2019 Drinking Water
Loan

5/23/2019

10/1/2035

1.50%

4,438,036

522,122

3,915,914

2020 Utility System
Revenue & Refunding

10/20/2020

12/1/2041

2.04%

24,925,000

0

24,925,000

$103,618,036

$55,956,398

$47,661,638

*Reflects net interest yield application of the 35% federal credit payments with respect to the bonds
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Year Ending

Business-Type Activities

December 31

Principal

Interest

2021

2,942,516

1,675,196

2022

3,367,516

1,469,526

2023

3,262,516

1,368,309

2024

3,352,516

1,267,058

2025

3,447,516

1,161,642

2026-2030

15,847,439

4,245,191

2031-2035

8,596,620

2,147,330

2036-2040

6,250,000

888,800

2041-2045

595,000

23,800

Total

$47,661,638

$14,246,852

At December 31, 2020, restricted assets in proprietary funds contain $863,038 in sinking funds and
reserves as required by bond indentures.
There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The
City is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions.
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NOTE 9 - CHANGES IN LONG TERM LIABILITIES
During the year ended December 31, 2020 the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:

Governmental Activities

Beginning
Balance
01/01/20

Firemen's Pension liabitlity
OPEB Obligation
DRS Pension Liability
Compensated Absences
Governmental activity long-term liabilities:

$651,775
$6,638,027
$4,518,275
$1,025,080
$12,833,156

$145,652
$634,727

$1,325,022

$612,388
$7,127,102
$3,232,640
$1,170,732
$12,142,862

Business-Type Activities
Bonds payable:
Revenue Bonds
Less Issuance Premiums
Total bonds payable

$41,440,000
$336,889
$41,776,889

$24,925,000
$5,412,283
$30,337,283

$28,815,000
$25,915
$28,840,915

$37,550,000
$5,723,258
$43,273,258

DRS Pension Liability
Compensated Absences
PWTF/CERB Loans
Business-type activity long-term liabilities

$2,745,562
$286,148
$10,944,152
$55,752,751

$495,047

$2,250,515
$335,787
$10,111,636
$55,971,197

Additions

Reductions

$39,387
$489,075
$1,285,635

$49,639
$30,386,922

$832,516
$30,168,477

Ending Balance Due Within One
12/31/20
Year

$58,537
$58,537

$2,110,000
$2,110,000

$16,789
$832,516
$2,959,305

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for them are included as part
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NOTE 10 – INTERFUND TRANSFERS AND BALANCES

Interfund Transfers
Interfund transfers as of December 31, 2020 were as follows:

General Fund
Street Maintenance Fund
EMS Fund
Non Major Governmental
Storm Drain Fund
Fiduciary Funds

Transfers In
363,295
1,287,142
40,445
1,290,657

2,981,539

Transfers Out

2,812,337
31,304
137,898
2,981,539

Interfund transfers are used primarily to move unrestricted revenues to finance various programs
that the city must account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, such as
transfers of Real Estate Excise Taxes.
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NOTE 11 – RESTRICTED COMPONENT OF NET POSITION
The government-wide statement of net position reports $30,743,831 of restricted component of net position, of which
$0 is restricted by enabling legislation and $30,743,831 is restricted by bond covenants and other contract obligations.
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NOTE 12 – RISK MANAGEMENT

The City of Anacortes is exposed to various risks of loss such as natural disasters, property
damage, liability, employee dishonesty, and personal injury. In order to mitigate these risks, the
City is insured in several categories by various insurers. These risk categories and coverages
are described below. There have been no significant reductions or other coverage changes from
the prior year. Furthermore, settlements did not exceed insurance coverage during any of the
past three years.
Liability Risks
The City of Anacortes is a member of the Washington Cities Insurance Authority (WCIA).
Utilizing Chapter 48.62 RCW (self-insurance regulation) and Chapter 39.34 RCW (Interlocal
Cooperation Act), nine cities originally formed WCIA on January 1, 1981. WCIA was created for
the purpose of providing a pooling mechanism for jointly purchasing insurance, jointly selfinsuring, and / or jointly contracting for risk management services. WCIA has a total of 163
members.
New members initially contract for a three-year term, and thereafter automatically renew on an
annual basis. A one-year withdrawal notice is required before membership can be terminated.
Termination does not relieve a former member from its unresolved loss history incurred during
membership.
Liability coverage is written on an occurrence basis, without deductibles. Coverage includes
general, automobile, police, errors or omissions, stop gap, employment practices and employee
benefits liability. Limits are $4 million per occurrence in the self-insured layer, and $21 million in
limits above the self-insured layer is provided by reinsurance. Total limits are $20 million per
occurrence subject to aggregates and sublimits. The Board of Directors determines the limits
and terms of coverage annually.
Insurance for property, automobile physical damage, fidelity, inland marine, and boiler and
machinery coverage are purchased on a group basis. Various deductibles apply by type of
coverage. Property coverage is self-funded from the members’ deductible to $750,000, for all
perils other than flood and earthquake, and insured above that to $400 million per occurrence
subject to aggregates and sublimits. Automobile physical damage coverage is self-funded from
the members’ deductible to $250,000 and insured above that to $100 million per occurrence
subject to aggregates and sublimits.
In-house services include risk management consultation, loss control field services, and claims
and litigation administration. WCIA contracts for certain claims investigations, consultants for
personnel and land use issues, insurance brokerage, actuarial, and lobbyist services.
WCIA is fully funded by its members, who make annual assessments on a prospectively rated
basis, as determined by an outside, independent actuary. The assessment covers loss, loss
adjustment, reinsurance and other administrative expenses. As outlined in the interlocal, WCIA
retains the right to additionally assess the membership for any funding shortfall.
An investment committee, using investment brokers, produces additional revenue by investment
of WCIA’s assets in financial instruments which comply with all State guidelines.
A Board of Directors governs WCIA, which is comprised of one designated representative from
each member. The Board elects an Executive Committee and appoints a Treasurer to provide
general policy direction for the organization. The WCIA Executive Director reports to the
Executive Committee and is responsible for conducting the day to day operations of WCIA.
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Property Risks
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets. For these risks, the City carries commercial insurance from several different insurers.
Employee Related Risks
For the coverage of risks associated with employees, the City uses both the State of
Washington standard employment insurance agencies and commercial insurance policies. The
State policies cover the City for the risk of claims against unemployment and injury to the
employee. The commercial insurance protects the City against health care costs.

Page 56

NOTE 13 – CONTINGENCIES AND LITIGATIONS
The City of Anacortes has recorded in its financial statements all material liabilities, including an
estimate for situations which are not yet resolved but where, based on available information,
management believes it is probable that the City will have to make payment. In the opinion of
management, the City’s insurance policies are adequate to pay all known or pending claims.
As discussed in Note 8, Long Term Debt, the City is contingently liable for repayment of refunded
debt.
The City of Anacortes participates in a number of federal and state assisted programs. These
grants are subject to audit by the grantors or their representatives. Such audits could result in
requests for reimbursement to grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under the terms of the
grants. The City of Anacortes’ management believes that such disallowances, if any, would be
immaterial.
In February of 2020, the City settled, via consent decree, the matter of Puget Soundkeepers v. City
of Anacortes, which was a Clean Water Act action alleging violations of the City’s obligations for
stormwater management under the City’s NPDES Phase II permit. Under the terms of the Consent
Decree, which was entered on February 26, 2020 and resolved the litigation, the City agreed to
certain elements of its stormwater management program, including two LID retrofit projects, and
public education and outreach.
In a letter dated January 16, 2018 the City was identified as a potentially liable person (PLP) under
the Model Toxics Control Act (MTCA) based on the presence of hazardous substances at the
former Anacortes Water Treatment Plant. Additional information is provided in Note 20, Pollution
Remediation Obligation.
In an Early Notice Letter dated January 22, 2020 (revised February 7, 2020), Ecology notified the
City that the 2009 NFA determination had been rescinded and the former municipal landfill known
as the A Avenue Landfill had been placed on Ecology’s Confirmed and Suspected Contaminated
Sites List for further evaluation. The City is working proactively with Ecology to review historical
information and assess whether additional work is required. Additional information is provided in
Note 22, Closure Care Cost.
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Note 14 – Pension Plans
The following table represents the aggregate pension amounts for all plans for the year 2020:
Aggregate Pension Amounts – All Plans
Pension liabilities
$ (4,315,357)
Pension assets
$ 3,754,154
Deferred outflows of resources
$ 1,836,364
Deferred inflows of resources
$ (1,780,186)
Pension expense/expenditures
$ 195,126
State Sponsored Pension Plans
Substantially all City of Anacortes’ full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of the
following statewide retirement systems administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement
Systems, under cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee defined benefit and defined contribution
retirement plans. The state Legislature establishes, and amends, laws pertaining to the creation and
administration of all public retirement systems.
The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the primary government of the State
of Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for each plan. The DRS CAFR may be
obtained by writing to:
Department of Retirement Systems
Communications Unit
P.O. Box 48380
Olympia, WA 98540-8380
Or the DRS CAFR may be downloaded from the DRS website at www.drs.wa.gov.
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)
PERS members include elected officials; state employees; employees of the Supreme, Appeals and Superior
Courts; employees of the legislature; employees of district and municipal courts; employees of local
governments; and higher education employees not participating in higher education retirement programs.
PERS is comprised of three separate pension plans for membership purposes. PERS plans 1 and 2 are
defined benefit plans, and PERS plan 3 is a defined benefit plan with a defined contribution component.
PERS Plan 1 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as two
percent of the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the member’s years of service. The AFC
is the average of the member’s 24 highest consecutive service months. Members are eligible for retirement
from active status at any age with at least 30 years of service, at age 55 with at least 25 years of service, or
at age 60 with at least five years of service. Members retiring from active status prior to the age of 65 may
receive actuarially reduced benefits. Retirement benefits are actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a
survivor benefit. Other benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments, an optional cost-of-living
adjustment (COLA), and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor
and Industries. PERS 1 members were vested after the completion of five years of eligible service. The
plan was closed to new entrants on September 30, 1977.
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Contributions
The PERS Plan 1 member contribution rate is established by State statute at 6 percent. The employer
contribution rate is developed by the Office of the State Actuary and includes an administrative expense
component that is currently set at 0.18 percent. Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts
Plan 1 employer contribution rates. The PERS Plan 1 required contribution rates (expressed as a percentage
of covered payroll) for 2020 were as follows:
PERS Plan 1
Actual Contribution Rates
January – August 2020
PERS Plan 1
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
Administrative Fee
Total
September – December 2020
PERS Plan 1
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
Administrative Fee
Total

Employer

Employee*

7.92%
4.76%
0.18%
12.86%

6.00%

7.92%
4.87%
0.18%
12.97%

6.00%
6.00%
6.00%

* For employees participating in JBM, the contribution rate was 12.26%.
PERS Plan 2/3 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as
two percent of the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the member’s years of service for
Plan 2 and 1 percent of AFC for Plan 3. The AFC is the average of the member’s 60 highest-paid
consecutive service months. There is no cap on years of service credit. Members are eligible for retirement
with a full benefit at 65 with at least five years of service credit. Retirement before age 65 is considered an
early retirement. PERS Plan 2/3 members who have at least 20 years of service credit and are 55 years of
age or older, are eligible for early retirement with a benefit that is reduced by a factor that varies according
to age for each year before age 65. PERS Plan 2/3 members who have 30 or more years of service credit
and are at least 55 years old can retire under one of two provisions:
x

With a benefit that is reduced by three percent for each year before age 65; or

x

With a benefit that has a smaller (or no) reduction (depending on age) that imposes stricter returnto-work rules.

PERS Plan 2/3 members hired on or after May 1, 2013 have the option to retire early by accepting a
reduction of five percent for each year of retirement before age 65. This option is available only to those
who are age 55 or older and have at least 30 years of service credit. PERS Plan 2/3 retirement benefits are
also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor benefit. Other PERS Plan 2/3 benefits include
duty and non-duty disability payments, a cost-of-living allowance (based on the CPI), capped at three
percent annually and a one-time duty related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor
and Industries. PERS 2 members are vested after completing five years of eligible service. Plan 3 members
are vested in the defined benefit portion of their plan after ten years of service; or after five years of service
if 12 months of that service are earned after age 44.
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PERS Plan 3 defined contribution benefits are totally dependent on employee contributions and investment
earnings on those contributions. PERS Plan 3 members choose their contribution rate upon joining
membership and have a chance to change rates upon changing employers. As established by statute, Plan
3 required defined contribution rates are set at a minimum of 5 percent and escalate to 15 percent with a
choice of six options. Employers do not contribute to the defined contribution benefits. PERS Plan 3
members are immediately vested in the defined contribution portion of their plan.
Contributions
The PERS Plan 2/3 employer and employee contribution rates are developed by the Office of the State
Actuary to fully fund Plan 2 and the defined benefit portion of Plan 3. The Plan 2/3 employer rates include
a component to address the PERS Plan 1 UAAL and an administrative expense that is currently set at 0.18
percent. Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 2 employer and employee
contribution rates and Plan 3 contribution rates. The PERS Plan 2/3 required contribution rates (expressed
as a percentage of covered payroll) for 2020 were as follows:
PERS Plan 2/3
Actual Contribution Rates
January – August 2020
PERS Plan 2/3
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
Administrative Fee
Employee PERS Plan 3
Total
September – December 2020
PERS Plan 2/3
PERS Plan 1 UAAL
Administrative Fee
Employee PERS Plan 3
Total

Employer 2/3

Employee 2*

7.92%
4.76%
0.18%

7.90%

12.86%
7.92%
4.87%
0.18%
12.97%

Varies
7.41%
7.90%
Varies
7.90%

* For employees participating in JBM, the contribution rate was 19.75%.
The City of Anacortes’ actual PERS plan contributions were $546,486 to PERS Plan 1 and $893,193 to
PERS Plan 2/3 for the year ended December 31, 2020.
Law Enforcement Officers’ and Fire Fighters’ Retirement System (LEOFF)
LEOFF membership includes all full-time, fully compensated, local law enforcement commissioned
officers, firefighters, and as of July 24, 2005, emergency medical technicians. LEOFF is comprised of two
separate defined benefit plans.
LEOFF Plan 1 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined per
year of service calculated as a percent of final average salary (FAS) as follows:
x
x
x

20+ years of service – 2.0% of FAS
10-19 years of service – 1.5% of FAS
5-9 years of service – 1% of FAS
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The FAS is the basic monthly salary received at the time of retirement, provided a member has held the
same position or rank for 12 months preceding the date of retirement. Otherwise, it is the average of the
highest consecutive 24 months’ salary within the last ten years of service. Members are eligible for
retirement with five years of service at the age of 50. Other benefits include duty and non-duty disability
payments, a cost-of living adjustment (COLA), and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible
by the Department of Labor and Industries. LEOFF 1 members were vested after the completion of five
years of eligible service. The plan was closed to new entrants on September 30, 1977.
Contributions
Starting on July 1, 2000, LEOFF Plan 1 employers and employees contribute zero percent, as long as the
plan remains fully funded. The LEOFF Plan I had no required employer or employee contributions for
fiscal year 2020. Employers paid only the administrative expense of 0.18 percent of covered payroll.
LEOFF Plan 2 provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as
two percent of the final average salary (FAS) per year of service (the FAS is based on the highest
consecutive 60 months). Members are eligible for retirement with a full benefit at 53 with at least five
years of service credit. Members who retire prior to the age of 53 receive reduced benefits. If the member
has at least 20 years of service and is age 50, the reduction is three percent for each year prior to age 53.
Otherwise, the benefits are actuarially reduced for each year prior to age 53. LEOFF 2 retirement benefits
are also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor benefit. Other benefits include duty and nonduty disability payments, a cost-of-living allowance (based on the CPI), capped at three percent annually
and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor and Industries.
LEOFF 2 members are vested after the completion of five years of eligible service.
Contributions
The LEOFF Plan 2 employer and employee contribution rates are developed by the Office of the State
Actuary to fully fund Plan 2. The employer rate includes an administrative expense component set at 0.18
percent. Plan 2 employers and employees are required to pay at the level adopted by the LEOFF Plan 2
Retirement Board.
Effective July 1, 2017, when a LEOFF employer charges a fee or recovers costs for services rendered by a
LEOFF 2 member to a non-LEOFF employer, the LEOFF employer must cover both the employer and state
contributions on the LEOFF 2 basic salary earned for those services. The state contribution rate (expressed
as a percentage of covered payroll) was 3.44% in 2020.
The LEOFF Plan 2 required contribution rates (expressed as a percentage of covered payroll) for 2020 were
as follows:
LEOFF Plan 2
Actual Contribution Rates
January – December 2020
State and local governments
Administrative Fee
Total
Ports and Universities
Administrative Fee
Total

Employer

Employee

5.15%
0.18%
5.33%
8.59%
0.18%
8.77%

8.59%
8.59%
8.59%
8.59%
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The City of Anacortes’ actual contributions to the plan were $306,607 for the year ended December 31,
2020.
The Legislature, by means of a special funding arrangement, appropriates money from the state General
Fund to supplement the current service liability and fund the prior service costs of Plan 2 in accordance
with the recommendations of the Pension Funding Council and the LEOFF Plan 2 Retirement Board. This
special funding situation is not mandated by the state constitution and could be changed by statute. For the
state fiscal year ending June 30, 2020, the state contributed $76,297,643 to LEOFF Plan 2. The amount
recognized by the City of Anacortes as its proportionate share of this amount is $3,137,397.
Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability (TPL) for each of the DRS plans was determined using the most recent actuarial
valuation completed in 2020 with a valuation date of June 30, 2019. The actuarial assumptions used in the
valuation were based on the results of the Office of the State Actuary’s (OSA) 2013-2018 Experience Study
and the 2019 Economic Experience Study.
Additional assumptions for subsequent events and law changes are current as of the 2019 actuarial valuation
report. The TPL was calculated as of the valuation date and rolled forward to the measurement date of June
30, 2020. Plan liabilities were rolled forward from June 30, 2019, to June 30, 2020, reflecting each plan’s
normal cost (using the entry-age cost method), assumed interest and actual benefit payments.
x

Inflation: 2.75% total economic inflation; 3.50% salary inflation

x

Salary increases: In addition to the base 3.50% salary inflation assumption, salaries are also
expected to grow by promotions and longevity.

x

Investment rate of return: 7.4%

Mortality rates were developed using the Society of Actuaries’ Pub. H-2020 mortality rates, which vary by
member status, as the base table. The OSA applied age offsets for each system, as appropriate, to better
tailor the mortality rates to the demographics of each plan. OSA applied the long-term MP-2017
generational improvement scale, also developed by the Society Actuaries, to project mortality rates for
every year after the 2010 base table. Mortality rates are applied on a generational basis; meaning, each
member is assumed to receive additional mortality improvements in each future year throughout his or her
lifetime.
There were changes in methods and assumptions since the last valuation.
x

OSA updated its demographic assumptions based on the results of its latest demographic experience
study. See OSA’s 2013-2018 Demographic Experience Study at leg.wa.gov/osa.

x

OSA updated the Early Retirement Factors and Joint-and-Survivor factors used in its model to
match the ones implemented by DRS on October 1, 2020. These factors are used to value benefits
for members who elect to retire early and for survivors of members that die prior to retirement.

x

The valuation includes liabilities and assets for Plan 3 members purchasing Total Allocation
Portfolio annuities when determining contribution rates and funded status.

x

OSA simplified its modeling of medical premium reimbursements for survivors of duty-related
deaths in LEOFF 2.
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x

OSA changed its method of updating certain data items that change annually, including the public
safety duty-related death lump sum and Washington state average wage. OSA set these values at
2018 and will project them into the future using assumptions until the next Demographic
Experience Study in 2025. See leg.wa.gov/osa for more information on this method change.

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for all DRS plans was 7.4 percent.
To determine that rate, an asset sufficiency test was completed to test whether each pension plan’s fiduciary
net position was sufficient to make all projected future benefit payments for current plan members. Based
on OSA’s assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return
of 7.4 percent was used to determine the total liability.
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
The long-term expected rate of return on the DRS pension plan investments of 7.4 percent was determined
using a building-block-method. In selecting this assumption, the Office of the State Actuary (OSA)
reviewed the historical experience data, considered the historical conditions that produced past annual
investment returns, and considered Capital Market Assumptions (CMA’s) and simulated expected
investment returns provided by the Washington State Investment Board (WSIB). The WSIB uses the
CMA’s and their target asset allocation to simulate future investment returns at various future times.
Estimated Rates of Return by Asset Class
Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2020, are summarized in the table below. The inflation component
used to create the table is 2.2 percent and represents the WSIB’s most recent long-term estimate of broad
economic inflation.
Asset Class
Fixed Income
Tangible Assets
Real Estate
Global Equity
Private Equity

Target
Allocation
20%
7%
18%
32%
23%
100%

% Long-Term
Expected Real Rate of
Return Arithmetic
2.20%
5.10%
5.80%
6.30%
9.30%

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset)
The table below presents the City of Anacortes’ proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.4 percent, as well as what the City of Anacortes’ proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.4
percent) or 1-percentage point higher (8.4 percent) than the current rate.
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1% Decrease
(6.4%)
PERS 1
PERS 2/3
LEOFF 1
LEOFF 2

$3,344,202
$7,639,927
($493,148)
($62,111)

Current Discount
Rate
(7.4%)
$2,669,900
$1,227,836
($605,871)
($3,137,397)

1% Increase
(8.4%)
$2,081,840
($4,052,524)
($703,396)
($5,655,444)

The table below presents the City of Anacortes’ proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 2.00 percent, as well as what the City of Anacortes’ proportionate share of the
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower
(1.00 percent) or 1-percentage point higher (3.00 percent) than the current rate.
1% Decrease
(1.0%)
Firemen’s Pension Fund

$481,524

Current Discount
Rate
(2.0%)
$417,620

1% Increase
(3.0%)
$362,577

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the State’s pension plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued DRS financial report.
Pension Liabilities (Assets), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
At June 30, 2020, the City of Anacortes reported a total pension liability of $4,315,357 for its proportionate
share of the net pension liabilities as follows:
PERS 1
PERS 2/3
LEOFF 1
LEOFF 2
Fireman’s Pension (12/31/20)
VFFRPF

Liability (or Asset)
$2,669,900
$1,227,836
($605,871)
($3,137,397)
$417,620
($10,885)

The amount of the asset reported above for LEOFF Plans 1 and 2 reflects a reduction for State pension
support provided to the City of Anacortes. The amount recognized by the City of Anacortes as its
proportionate share of the net pension asset, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension
asset that was associated with the City of Anacortes were as follows:
Employer’s proportionate share
State’s proportionate share of the net
pension asset associated with the
employer
TOTAL

LEOFF 1 Asset
($605,871)
($4,098,099)

LEOFF 2 Asset
($3,137,397)
($2,006,128)

($4,703,971)

($5,143,525)
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At June 30, the City of Anacortes’ proportionate share of the collective net pension liabilities was as
follows:

PERS 1
PERS 2/3
LEOFF 1

Proportionate
Share 6/30/19
0.077510%
0.096678%
0.029972%

Proportionate
Share 6/30/20
0.075623%
0.096004%
0.032082%

Change in
Proportion
(0.001887%)
(0.000674%)
0.002110%

LEOFF 2

0.153220%

0.153805%

0.000585%

VFFRPF

0.03%

0.03%

0.00%

Employer contribution transmittals received and processed by the DRS for the fiscal year ended June 30
are used as the basis for determining each employer’s proportionate share of the collective pension amounts
reported by the DRS in the Schedules of Employer and Nonemployer Allocations for all plans except
LEOFF 1.
LEOFF Plan 1 allocation percentages are based on the total historical employer contributions to LEOFF 1
from 1971 through 2000 and the retirement benefit payments in fiscal year 2020. Historical data was
obtained from a 2011 study by the Office of the State Actuary (OSA). In fiscal year 2020, the state of
Washington contributed 87.12 percent of LEOFF 1 employer contributions and all other employers
contributed the remaining 12.88 percent of employer contributions. LEOFF 1 is fully funded and no further
employer contributions have been required since June 2000. If the plan becomes underfunded, funding of
the remaining liability will require new legislation. The allocation method the plan chose reflects the
projected long-term contribution effort based on historical data.
In fiscal year 2020, the state of Washington contributed 39 percent of LEOFF 2 employer contributions
pursuant to RCW 41.26.725 and all other employers contributed the remaining 61 percent of employer
contributions.
The collective net pension liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the actuarial valuation
date on which the total pension liability (asset) is based was as of June 30, 2019, with update procedures
used to roll forward the total pension liability to the measurement date.
Pension Expense
For the year ended December 31, 2020, the City of Anacortes recognized pension expense as follows:
PERS 1
PERS 2/3
LEOFF 1
LEOFF 2
FIREMAN’S PENSION FUND
VFFRPF
TOTAL

Pension Expense
$53,580
$114,831
($68,521)
$121,020
($35,444)
$9,660
$195,126
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Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
At December 31, 2020, the City of Anacortes reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
PERS 1
Differences between expected and actual
experience
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan investments
Changes of assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of
contributions
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date
TOTAL

Deferred Outflows
of Resources
$

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
$

$

($14,865)

$
$

$
$

$270,554
$270,554

$
($14,865)

At December 31, 2020, the City of Anacortes reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
PERS 2/3
Differences between expected and actual
experience
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan investments
Changes of assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of
contributions
Contributions subsequent to the measurement
date
TOTAL

Deferred Outflows
of Resources
$439,548

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
($153,877)

$

($62,356)

$17,488
$21,090

($838,719)
($93,463)

$443,295

$

$921,420

($1,148,415)

At December 31, 2020, the City of Anacortes reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
LEOFF 1
Differences between expected and actual
experience
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan investments
Changes of assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of
contributions
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date
TOTAL

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

$

($6,337)

$0

$
($6,337)
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At December 31, 2020, the City of Anacortes reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
LEOFF 2
Differences between expected and actual
experience
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan investments
Changes of assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of
contributions
Contributions subsequent to the measurement
date
TOTAL

Deferred Outflows
of Resources
$434,111

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
($55,645)

$

($34,969)

$4,545
$45,920

($485,808)
($34,146)

$159,814

$

$644,390

($610,568)

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the City of Anacortes’ contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended December 31, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Year ended
December 31:
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter
Year ended
December 31:
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter
Year ended
December 31:
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

PERS 1
($67,458)
($2,122)
$20,583
$34,131
$
$
PERS 2/3
($522,980)
($135,284)
$8,322
$92,462
($54,271)
($58,540)
LEOFF 1
($22,623)
($1,179)
$6,431
$11,033
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Year ended
December 31:
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

LEOFF 2
($233,371)
($26,990)
$50,487
$109,025
($17,035)
($8,108)

Volunteer Fire Fighters’ and Reserve Officers’ Relief and Pension Fund (VFFRPF)
VFFRPF is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plan administered by the State Board for
Volunteer Fire Fighters and Reserve Officers. The Board is appointed by the Governor and is comprised
of five members of fire departments covered by Chapter 41.24 RCW. Administration costs of the VFFRPF
are funded through legislative appropriation. Approximately 450 local governments, consisting of fire
departments, emergency medical service districts and law enforcement agencies, contribute to the plan. In
addition, the state, a nonemployer contributing entity, contributes 40 percent of the fire insurance premium
tax. Retirement benefits are established in Chapter 41.24 RCW and may be amended only the Legislature.
The VFFRPF plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report, but is included in the comprehensive annual
financial report (CAFR) of the State of Washington. The State CAFR may be downloaded from the Office
of Financial Management (OFM) website at www.ofm.wa.gov.
Membership in the VFFRPF includes volunteer firefighters, emergency medical technicians, and
commissioned reserve law enforcement officers of participating employers. After 25 years of active
membership, members having reached the age of 65 and who have paid their annual retirement fee for 25
years are entitled to receive a monthly benefit of $50 plus $10 per year of service, for a maximum monthly
benefit of $300. Reduced pensions are available for members under the age of 65 or with less than 25 years
of service.
Members are vested after ten years of service. The VFFRPF members earn no interest on contributions and
may elect to withdraw their contributions upon termination. Death and active duty disability benefits are
provided at no cost to the member. Death benefits in the line of duty consist of a lump sum of $214,000
and funeral and burial expenses of $2,000. Members receiving disability benefits at the time of death shall
be paid $500.
Contributions
Contribution rates for emergency medical service districts (EMSD) and law enforcement agencies are set
each year by the Board based on the actual cost of participation as determined by the Office of the State
Actuary. All other contribution rates are set by the Legislature. Municipalities may opt to pay the member’s
fee on their behalf.
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The contribution rates for 2020 were as follows:
VFFRPF
Municipality fee
Member fee

Firefighters
$30
$30

EMSD and
Reserve Officers
$105
$30

The City of Anacortes’ actual contributions to the plan were $240 for the year ended December 31, 2020.
The City of Anacortes has opted to pay members’ fees on their behalf. Contributions on behalf of members
were $120 for the year ended December 31, 2020.
In accordance with Chapter 41.24 RCW, the state contributes 40 percent of the fire insurance premium tax
to the plan. For fiscal year 2020, the state’s fire insurance premium tax contribution was $8.2 million. The
City of Anacortes received $28,607 of this amount.
Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension asset for the VFFRPF was determined by an actuarial valuation by the Office of the State
Actuary (OSA) as of June 30, 2019, and rolled forward to June 30, 2020, using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement:
x
x
x

Inflation: 2.50%
Salary increases: N/A
Investment rate of return: 7.00%

The actuarial assumptions used in the valuation were based on the results of the Office of the State Actuary’s
(OSA) 2007-2012 Demographic Experience Study, the 2008-2013 Pension Experience Study, and the 2018
Relief Experience Study. Additional assumptions for subsequent events and law changes are current as of
the 2019 valuation report.
Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 report’s Combined Healthy Table and Combined Disabled
Table, published by the Society of Actuaries. The OSA applied offsets to the base table and recognized
future improvements in mortality by projecting the mortality rates using 100 percent Scale BB. Mortality
rates are applied on a generational basis; meaning, each member is assumed to receive additional mortality
improvements in each future year throughout their lifetime.
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total VFFRPF pension liability was 7 percent. To determine that
rate, an asset sufficiency test was completed to test whether the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was
sufficient to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Consistent with current
law, the completed asset sufficiency test included as assumed 7 percent long-term discount rate to determine
funding liabilities for calculating future contribution rate requirements. Consistent with the long-term
expected rate of return, a 7 percent future investment rate of return on invested assets was assumed for the
test. Contributions from plan members, municipalities, and the state will be made at the current contribution
rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available
to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
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Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
The long-term expected rate of return on the VFFRPF pension plan investments of 7.4 percent was
determined using a building-block-method. In selecting this assumption, the Office of the State Actuary
(OSA) reviewed the historical experience data, considered the historical conditions that produced past
annual investment returns, and considered capital market assumptions and simulated expected investment
returns provided by the Washington State Investment Board (WSIB). The WSIB uses the capital market
assumptions and their target asset allocation to simulate future investment returns over various time
horizons.
Estimated Rates of Return by Asset Class
Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2020, are summarized in the table below. The inflation component
used to create the table is 2.2 percent and represents the WSIB’s most recent long-term estimate of broad
economic inflation.
Asset Class
Fixed Income
Tangible Assets
Real Estate
Global Equity
Private Equity

Target
Allocation
20%
7%
18%
32%
23%
100%

% Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return
Arithmetic
2.20%
5.10%
5.80%
6.30%
9.30%

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Asset
The following presents the City of Anacortes’ proportionate share of the VFFRPF net pension asset
calculated using the discount rate of 7 percent, as well as what the City of Anacortes’ proportionate share
of the net pension asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower
(6 percent) or 1-percentage point higher (8 percent) than the current rate.
1% Decrease
(6.0%)
VFFRPF

($1,552)

Current Discount
Rate
(7.0%)
($10,572)

1% Increase
(8.0%)
($17,900)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the VFFRPF plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
State of Washington CAFR.
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Pension Liabilities (Assets), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
At June 30, 2020, the City of Anacortes reported an asset of $10,885 for its proportionate share of the
VFFRPF plan’s net pension asset. The City of Anacortes’ proportion of the net pension asset was based on
actual contributions to the plan relative to total contributions of all participating municipalities. At June
30, 2020 the City of Anacortes’ proportion was 0.03%.
The VFFRPF collective net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the actuarial valuation
date on which the total pension liability is based was as of June 30, 2019, with update procedures used to
roll forward the total pension liability to the measurement date.
For the year ended December 31, 2020, the City of Anacortes recognized pension expense of $9,660
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are not material to the VFFRPF plan.
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1RWH±'HILQHG%HQHILW2WKHU3RVWHPSOR\PHQW%HQHILW 23(% 3ODQ

7KHIROORZLQJWDEOHUHSUHVHQWVWKHDJJUHJDWH23(%DPRXQWVIRUDOOSODQVVXEMHFWWRWKHUHTXLUHPHQWVRI
*$6%6WDWHPHQWIRUWKH\HDU


$JJUHJDWH23(%$PRXQWV±$OO3ODQV
23(%OLDELOLWLHV

23(%DVVHWV

'HIHUUHGRXWIORZVRIUHVRXUFHV

'HIHUUHGLQIORZVRIUHVRXUFHV

23(%H[SHQVHVH[SHQGLWXUHV



3ODQ'HVFULSWLRQ
7KH/(2))23(%3ODQLVDGPLQLVWHUHGE\WKH&LW\DVDVLQJOHHPSOR\HUGHILQHGEHQHILWSODQDQGLVQRW
DGPLQLVWHUHGWKURXJKDTXDOLI\LQJWUXVW

$VUHTXLUHGE\WKH5HYLVHG&RGHRI:DVKLQJWRQ 5&: &KDSWHUWKH&LW\SURYLGHVOLIHWLPHPHGLFDO
FDUHIRUPHPEHUVRIWKH/DZ(QIRUFHPHQW2IILFHUVDQG)LUHILJKWHUV /(2)) UHWLUHPHQWV\VWHPKLUHGEHIRUH
2FWREHU XQGHUDVLQJOH HPSOR\HUGHILQHGEHQHILWKHDOWKFDUHSODQDGPLQLVWHUHGE\WKH&LW\7KH
PHPEHUV¶QHFHVVDU\KRVSLWDOPHGLFDODQGQXUVLQJFDUHH[SHQVHVQRWSD\DEOHE\ZRUNHU¶VFRPSHQVDWLRQ
VRFLDOVHFXULW\LQVXUDQFHSURYLGHGE\DQRWKHUHPSOR\HURWKHUSHQVLRQSODQRUDQ\RWKHUVLPLODUVRXUFH
DUH FRYHUHG 0RVW PHGLFDO FRYHUDJH IRU HOLJLEOH UHWLUHHV ZDV SURYLGHG E\ WKH &LW\¶V HPSOR\HH PHGLFDO
LQVXUDQFHSURJUDP$VVRFLDWLRQRI:DVKLQJWRQ &LWLHV(PSOR\HH %HQHILW7UXVW $:& 7KH&LW\ SD\VIRU
ORQJWHUPFDUHLQVXUDQFHSROLFLHVLQHDFKRIWKHUHWLUHHVQDPHLQWKHHYHQWWKH\DUHFRPPLWWHGWRDFDUH
IDFLOLW\WKHLQVXUDQFHSROLF\ZRXOGEHFRPHHIIHFWLYHDQGFLW\ZRXOGVWRSSD\LQJWKHPRQWKO\SUHPLXPIRU
WKDWUHWLUHH8QGHUWKHDXWKRUL]DWLRQRIWKH/(2))'LVDELOLW\%RDUGGLUHFWSD\PHQWLVPDGHIRURWKHUUHWLUHH
PHGLFDOH[SHQVHVQRWFRYHUHGE\VWDQGDUGPHGLFDOSODQEHQHILWSURYLVLRQV$VHSDUDWHSRVWHPSOR\PHQW
EHQHILWSODQUHSRUWLVQRWDYDLODEOH7KH&LW\GRHVQRWSURYLGHSRVWUHWLUHPHQWKHDOWKFDUHEHQHILWVWRDQ\
RWKHUUHWLUHHVH[FHSWWKRVHPDQGDWHGE\WKH&RQVROLGDWHG2PQLEXV%XGJHW5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ$FW &2%5$ 
7KHUHTXLUHPHQWVHVWDEOLVKHGE\&2%5$DUHIXOO\IXQGHGE\HPSOR\HHVZKRHOHFWFRYHUDJHXQGHUWKH$FW
DQGQRGLUHFWFRVWVDUHLQFXUUHGE\WKH&LW\

7KHSODQLVIXQGHGRQDSD\DV\RXJREDVLVWKHUHDUHQRDVVHWVDFFXPXODWHGLQDTXDOLI\LQJWUXVWDQGLV
FORVHGWRQHZHQWUDQWV

(PSOR\HHVFRYHUHGE\EHQHILWWHUPV

$W'HFHPEHUWKHIROORZLQJHPSOR\HHVZHUHFRYHUHGE\WKHEHQHILWWHUPV

,QDFWLYHHPSOR\HHVRUEHQHILFLDULHVFXUUHQWO\UHFHLYLQJ
EHQHILWV
,QDFWLYHHPSOR\HHVHQWLWOHGWREXWQRW\HWUHFHLYLQJEHQHILWV
$FWLYHHPSOR\HHV
7RWDO







(PSOR\HHVFRYHUHGE\EHQHILWWHUPVDW'HFHPEHULQFOXGHLQDFWLYHPDOHUHWLUHHVHQWLWOHGWR
EHQHILWVDQGWKHUHDUH]HURDFWLYHHPSOR\HHV7KHUHZHUHILYHPHPEHUVLQDJHJURXSZLWKDQDYHUDJH
DJHRIWZRPHPEHUVLQDJHJURXSZLWKDQDYHUDJHDJHRIDQGVL[PHPEHUVLQDJHJURXS
ZLWKDQDYHUDJHDJH'XULQJWKH\HDUHQG'HFHPEHUWKH&LW\H[SHQGHGRQ
HOLJLEOHEHQHILWV
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0HWKRGRORJ\DVVXPSWLRQVDQGRWKHULQSXWV
8WLOL]LQJWKH2IILFHRIWKH6WDWH$FWXDU\¶V 26$ $OWHUQDWLYH0HDVXUHPHQW0HWKRG $00 2QOLQH7RRO 7RRO 
WKH&LW\XVHGWKHDOWHUQDWLYHPHDVXUHPHQWPHWKRGSHUPLWWHGXQGHU*$6%7KH26$DFWXDULDOUHSRUWV
UHOLHGXSRQWKH/(2))0HGLFDO%HQHILWV$FWXDULDO9DOXDWLRQ5HSRUWSXEOLVKHG-XO\&KDQJHV
LGHQWLILHGVLQFHWKHSULRUYDOXDWLRQLQFOXGHDQXSGDWLQJRIFHQVXVGDWDUHVXOWLQJLQDGHFUHDVHLQOLDELOLW\
KHDOWKFDUH DVVXPSWLRQV XSGDWH ZKLFK LQFOXGH QHZ KHDOWK FDUH WUHQGV GHFUHDVLQJ OLDELOLWLHV E\  QHZ
KHDOWKFDUHFRVWVGHFUHDVHGOLDELOLWLHVE\DQDGGLWLRQDODQGWKHGLVFRXQWUDWHFKDQJHZKLFKGHFUHDVHG
OLDELOLWLHVE\
7KH7RROXVHVWKHIROORZLQJDVVXPSWLRQV


DĞƚŚŽĚŽůŽŐǇ
 ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂůsĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶĂƚĞ
 ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂůDĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚĂƚĞ
 ĐƚƵĂƌŝĂůŽƐƚDĞƚŚŽĚ
 ŵŽƌƚŝǌĂƚŝŽŶDĞƚŚŽĚ
 ƐƐĞƚsĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶDĞƚŚŽĚ
ƐƐƵŵƉƚŝŽŶƐ


ϲͬϯϬͬϮϬϮϬ
ϲͬϯϬͬϮϬϮϬ
ŶƚƌǇŐĞ
ZĞĐŽŐŶŝǌĞĚ/ŵŵĞĚŝĂƚĞůǇ
Eͬ;EŽƐƐĞƚƐͿ


 ŝƐĐŽƵŶƚZĂƚĞϷ
  ĞŐŝŶŶŝŶŐŽĨDĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚzĞĂƌ
  ŶĚŽĨDĞĂƐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚzĞĂƌ
 ,ĞĂůƚŚĐĂƌĞdƌĞŶĚZĂƚĞƐϸ
  DĞĚŝĐĂůŽƐƚƐ
  
  
  
  >ŽŶŐͲdĞƌŵĂƌĞ
  
  DĞĚŝĐĂƌĞWĂƌƚWƌĞŵŝƵŵƐ
 DŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇZĂƚĞƐ;ĂƐƐƵŵĞƐϭϬϬйŵĂůĞƉŽƉƵůĂƚŝŽŶͿ
  ĂƐĞDŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇdĂďůĞ
  
  ŐĞ^ĞƚďĂĐŬ
  
  
  DŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇ/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ
  WƌŽũĞĐƚŝŽŶWĞƌŝŽĚ
 DĞĚŝĐĂƌĞWĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂƚŝŽŶZĂƚĞ


ϯ͘ϱϬй
Ϯ͘Ϯϭй

/ŶŝƚŝĂůƌĂƚĞŝƐĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇϲй
ƚƌĞŶĚƐĚŽǁŶƚŽĂƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇϱй
ŝŶƚŚĞϮϬϮϬΖƐ

ϰ͘ϱϬй

ƉƉƌŽǆŝŵĂƚĞůǇϱй͕ǀĂƌŝĞƐďǇǇĞĂƌ
ZWͲϮϬϬϬDŽƌƚĂůŝƚǇdĂďůĞ

нϭǇĞĂƌ,ĞĂůƚŚǇͬͲϮǇĞĂƌƐŝƐĂďůĞĚ
ůĞŶĚĞĚϱϬйͬϱϬй,ĞĂůƚŚǇͬŝƐĂďůĞĚ

ϭϬϬй^ĐĂůĞ
'ĞŶĞƌĂƚŝŽŶĂů
ϭϬϬй

6HHWKH$GGLWLRQDO'LVFORVXUHVWDEIRUPRUHGHWDLOVDQGJXLGDQFH
6RXUFH%RQG%X\HU*HQHUDO2EOLJDWLRQ%RQG0XQLFLSDO,QGH[


)RUDGGLWLRQDOGHWDLORQWKHKHDOWKFDUHWUHQGUDWHVSOHDVHVHH26$ V


$FWXDULDO9DOXDWLDRQRI/(2))0HGLFDO%HQHILWV
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6HQVLWLYLW\$QDO\VLV
7KHIROORZLQJWDEOHUHSUHVHQWVWKHWRWDO23(%OLDELOLW\RIWKH&LW\FDOFXODWHGXVLQJDGLVFRXQWUDWHRI
DVZHOODVZKDWWKH23(%OLDELOLW\ZRXOGEHLILWZHUHFDOFXODWHGXVLQJDGLVFRXQWUDWHWKDWLVORZHURU
KLJKHUWKDWWKHFXUUHQWUDWH

dŽƚĂůKW>ŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ
ŝƐĐŽƵŶƚZĂƚĞ

ϭйĞĐƌĞĂƐĞ
Ψϴ͕Ϭϴϴ͕ϲϯϲ

ƵƌƌĞŶƚŝƐĐŽƵŶƚ
ZĂƚĞ
Ψϳ͕ϭϮϳ͕ϭϬϮ

ϭй/ŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ
Ψϲ͕ϯϮϲ͕ϴϮϳ


7KHIROORZLQJWDEOHSUHVHQWVWKHWRWDO23(%OLDELOLW\RIWKH&LW\FDOFXODWHGXVLQJWKHFXUUHQWKHDOWKFDUHFRVW
WUHQGUDWHRIDVZHOODVZKDWWKH23(%OLDELOLW\ZRXOGEHLILWZHUHFDOFXODWHGXVLQJDGLVFRXQWUDWH
WKDWLVORZHURUKLJKHUWKDQWKHFXUUHQWUDWH

dŽƚĂůKW>ŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ
,ĞĂůƚŚĐĂƌĞdƌĞŶĚ

ϭйĞĐƌĞĂƐĞ
Ψϲ͕ϯϲϰ͕ϮϳϮ


&KDQJHVLQWKH7RWDO23(%/LDELOLW\

/(2))
7RWDO23(%/LDELOLW\DW
6HUYLFHFRVW
,QWHUHVW
&KDQJHVRIEHQHILWWHUPV
&KDQJHVLQH[SHULHQFHGDWDDQGDVVXPSWLRQV
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NOTE 16 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
Plan Description
The City is the administrator of a single employer defined benefit pension retirement system
called Firemen’s Pension Fund. The City is in compliance with the requirements of the Revised
Code of Washington (RCW) 41.18, and 41.16.
This system is a closed system in that membership is limited to firemen employed prior to March
1, 1970. As the City has no active members hired prior to March 1, 1970, nor any retirees or
survivors who retired prior to March 1, 1970, the entire firefighters’ pension obligation is for the
class of retirees since March 1, 1970. This latter class is mainly covered by LEOFF. Generally
benefits under the LEOFF retirement benefit systems are greater than or equal to the retirement
benefits under the prior system when payment begins. However, LEOFF retirement benefits
increase with the CPI (Seattle) while some City benefits increase with wages of current active
members. If wages go up faster than the CPI, the City becomes liable for this residual amount. It
is expected that wage increases will continue to outpace CPI increases which will result in a
growing liability in future years. As of December 31, 2020 there were a total of 4 individuals
covered by this system. 2 pensioners are receiving residual benefits from this system to
supplement their benefits provided by the LEOFF system. 2 other retirees are entitled to partial
retirement benefits should the benefits under this system ever exceed the benefits provided to
them by the LEOFF system. None of the members of this system remain in active employment.
The City is required to contribute funding necessary to provide benefits for years firefighters
served prior to the establishment of the LEOFF system, as described above. The City is
authorized to impose property tax levies up to $0.45 per $1,000 of assessed valuation for (2
separate levies at $0.225 per $1,000, as outlined in RCW 41.16.060) to fund the Fire Pension
System, or for any other use (see RCW 41.16.060). Both of these levies are incorporated into the
City’s annual property tax levy.
The plan is administered by a five member board as authorized in RCW 41.16.020 which consists
of the Mayor who is chair of the board, the City Clerk, a City Council member who is the Council
Finance Committee Chair, and two regularly employed firefighters.
Plan funds are invested per the City’s investment policy; like other City funds, plan funds are
comingled with other City funds and invested in instruments allowable per state law and City
policy. See Note 3 for additional information on City investments.
Net Pension Liability
The components of the net pension liability of the Firemen’s Pension Trust Fund at December 31,
2020, as actuarially determined and exclusive of costs payable under the LEOFF system, were
as follows:
Total Pension Liability
Fiduciary Net Position
Net Pension Liability
Fiduciary net position as a
% of total pension liability:

$ 612,388
(194,768)
$ 417,620
31.80%

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of the valuation date,
calculated based on the discount rate and actuarial assumptions below, and was then projected
forward to the measurement date. Any significant changes during this period have been reflected
as prescribed by GASB 67.
Discount Rate
Long-term expected rate of return,
(net of investment expense):
Municipal bond rate:
Valuation Date:
Measurement Date:
Inflation:

2.00%
2.00%
2.00%
January 1, 2020
December 31, 2020
2.25%
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Salary increases including inflation:
Mortality:

3.25%

RP-2000 Mortality Table (combined healthy), with generational projection using
100% of Projection Scale BB, with ages set back one year for males and forward
one year for females (set forward two years for disabled members).

Actuarial Cost Method:

Entry Age Normal

Sensitivity Analysis
The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of
2.00%, as well as what the City's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (1.00%) or 1 percentage point higher (3.00%) than
the current rate.

Total pension liability
Fiduciary net position
Net pension liability

1%
Decrease
1.00%

Current
Discount Rate
2.00%

1%
Increase
3.00%

676,292
194,768
481,524

612,388
194,768
417,620

557,345
194,768
362,577

The most recent actuarial study of the system was done by Milliman Financial Reporting as of
January 1, 2020 valuation date, and December 31, 2020 measurement date. The discount rate
has been updated to 2.00% which is an appropriate long-term expected rate of return on
investments such as those in the City's trust. The Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-bond
municipal bond index for bonds that mature in 20 years is 2.12% as of December 31, 2020.
Rounding this to the nearest 1/4% results in a discount rate of 2.00%. Using 2.00% for both the
long-term expected rate of return and the bond index will mean that 2.00% could be used as the
single discount rate. This will need to be re-evaluated as of later valuation dates.
The City is on a pay-as-you-go plan. Inflows are expected to remain comparable to prior years;
outflows may vary depending on participation.
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NOTE 17 – HEALTH & WELFARE
The City of Anacortes is a member of the Association of Washington Cities Employee Benefit Trust
Health Care Program (AWC Trust HCP). Chapter 48.62 RCW provides that two or more local government
entities may, by Interlocal agreement under Chapter 39.34 RCW, form together or join a pool or
organization for the joint purchasing of insurance, and/or joint self-insurance, to the same extent that they
may individually purchase insurance, or self-insure.
An agreement to form a pooling arrangement was made pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 39.34
RCW, the Interlocal Cooperation Act. The AWC Trust HCP was formed on January 1, 2014 when
participating cities, towns, and non-city entities of the AWC Employee Benefit Trust in the State of
Washington joined together by signing an Interlocal Governmental Agreement to jointly self-insure certain
health benefit plans and programs for participating employees, their covered dependents and other
beneficiaries through a designated account within the Trust.
As of December 31, 2020, 262 cities/towns/non-city entities participate in the AWC Trust HCP.
The AWC Trust HCP allows members to establish a program of joint insurance and provides health and
welfare services to all participating members.
In April 2020, the Board of Trustees adopted a large employer policy, requiring newly enrolling groups
with 600 or more employees to submit medical claims experience data in order to receive a quote for
medical coverage. Outside of this, the AWC Trust HCP pools claims without regard to individual member
experience. The pool is actuarially rated each year with the assumption of projected claims run-out for all
current members.
The AWC Trust HCP includes medical, dental and vision insurance through the following carriers: Kaiser
Foundation Health Plan of Washington, Kaiser Foundation Health Plan of Washington Options, Inc.,
Regence BlueShield, Asuris Northwest Health, Delta Dental of Washington, and Vision Service Plan.
Eligible members are cities and towns within the state of Washington. Non-City Entities (public agency,
public corporation, intergovernmental agency, or political subdivision within the state of Washington) are
eligible to apply for coverage into the AWC Trust HCP, submitting application to the Board of Trustees for
review as required in the Trust Agreement.
Participating employers pay monthly premiums to the AWC Trust HCP. The AWC Trust HCP is
responsible for payment of all covered claims. In 2020, the AWC Trust HCP purchased stop loss
insurance for Regence/Asuris plans at an individual stop loss (ISL) of $1.5 million through
Commencement Bay Risk Management, and Kaiser ISL at $1 million with Companion Life through ASG
Risk Management. The aggregate policy is for 200% of expected medical claims.
Participating employers contract to remain in the AWC Trust HCP for a minimum of three years.
Participating employers with over 250 employees must provide written notice of termination of all
coverage a minimum of 12 months in advance of the termination date, and participating employers with
under 250 employees must provide written notice of termination of all coverage a minimum of 6 months in
advance of termination date. When all coverage is being terminated, termination will only occur on
December 31. Participating employers terminating a group or line of coverage must notify the AWC Trust
HCP a minimum of 60 days prior to termination. A participating employer’s termination will not obligate
that member to past debts, or further contributions to the AWC Trust HCP. Similarly, the terminating
member forfeits all rights and interest to the AWC Trust HCP account.
The operations of the Health Care Program are managed by the Board of Trustees or its delegates. The
Board of Trustees is comprised of four regionally elected officials from Trust member cities or towns, the
Employee Benefit Advisory Committee Chair and Vice Chair, and two appointed individuals from the AWC
Board of Directors, who are from Trust member cities or towns. The Trustees or its appointed delegates
review and analyze Health Care Program related matters and make operational decisions regarding
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NOTE 18 – ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING CHANGES
In fiscal year 2020 the City was named a liable party to an old City landfill site, and has established
separate reporting for the A Avenue Dump Site. See Note 22 for additional information.
Consistent with GASB 84, the City has shifted assets previously reported as fiduciary funds to the
governmental fund statements. This resulted in a ‘Change in Accounting Principle’ amount of $2,773,607
reported on the statement of activities. In addition to the changes on the Statement of Activities the City’s
Fiduciary Fund statements were reduced by the same amount.
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premium contributions, reserves, plan options and benefits in compliance with Chapter 48.62 RCW. The
Board of Trustees has decision authority consistent with the Trust Agreement, Health Care Program
policies, Chapter 48.62 RCW and Chapter 200-110-WAC.
The accounting records of the AWC Trust HCP are maintained in accordance with methods prescribed by
the State Auditor’s office under the authority of Chapter 43.09 RCW. The AWC Trust HCP also follows
applicable accounting standards established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(“GASB”). In 2018, the retiree medical plan subsidy was eliminated, and is noted as such in the report for
the fiscal year ending December 31, 2018. Year-end financial reporting is done on an accrual basis and
submitted to the Office of the State Auditor as required by Chapter 200-110 WAC. The audit report for the
AWC Trust HCP is available from the Washington State Auditor’s office.
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NOTE 19 – VIOLATION OF FINANCE-RELATED LEGAL and CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS
There have been no material violations of finance related legal or contractual provisions of the City.
At year end fund 110, the Emergency Services Fund, was over budget by $16,706. This represents
.42% of the final adopted budget and the amount is considered de minimis and not material.
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NOTE 20 - LONG TERM LIABILITY - POLLUTION REMEDIATION OBLIGATIONS
GASB 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations, was
issued on November 30, 2006. This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting
standards for pollution (including contamination) remediation obligations, which are obligations
to address the current or potential detrimental effects of existing pollution by participating in
pollution remediation activities such as site assessments and cleanups. Once any one of five
specified obligating events occurs, a government entity is required to estimate the components
of expected pollution remediation outlays and determine whether outlays for those components
should be accrued as a liability or, if appropriate, capitalized when goods and services are
acquired.
A. Nature, Scope, and Source of Pollution Remediation Obligations
The City has identified remediation liability at one inactive facility for soil cleanup costs and for
removal of certain regulated building materials. The work is to be performed under cleanup
agreements with the Washington Department of Ecology in compliance with the State Model
Toxics Control Act and the Federal Toxic Substances Control Act regulations.
B. Amount of Estimated Liability
The current (2020) cost of the work is estimated at $5.9 million. This does not include demolition
costs for other non-PCB building materials, although those activities will take place at the same
time.
Pollution cleanup cost with three potential cost scenarios.
20% probability cost will be $4,716,381
60% probability cost will be $5,895,477
20% probability cost will be $7,074,572
Expected cash flow calculation:
(.20 x $4,716.381) + (.6 x $5,895,477) + (.20 x $7,074,572) = $5,895,477
There are no currently identified offsets for this liability. The City will re-measure cleanup and
removal liabilities on an annual basis to take into account work performed, cost escalation and
any changes in estimated costs to complete the work.
C. Methods and Assumptions Used for the Estimate
The estimated range for the site cleanup is determined from standard industry engineering
figures based on estimated quantities and unit costs.
D. Potential for Changes
Annual changes impacting the construction estimate for the remediation liability since its
inception are noted in section B above.
E. Estimated Recoveries
There are no currently identified offsets for this liability.
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NOTE 21 – PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS
There are no prior period adjustments reported for fiscal year 2020.
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Note 22 – Closure and Postclosure Care Cost
Summary Statement: The City of Anacortes (City) is working with the Washington State Department of Ecology
(Ecology) to conduct further assessment of environmental conditions at a former municipal landfill known as the
A Avenue Landfill (Site). The work will determine if further work is required to comply with the requirements of
the Model Toxics Control Act (MTCA). The current estimate of liability is $0.17 million to conduct a historical
data review and data gaps analysis. There is no basis at this time to determine whether additional work will be
required following these activities.

Site Background and Obligating Event: The Site is a former municipal solid waste landfill that was operated by
the City from approximately the 1960s to 2006. Following a Site Hazard Assessment in 2009, Ecology issued a No
Further Action (NFA) determination for the site. Since that time, the landfill has been monitored by Skagit
County Public Health Department (SCPHD) under a 10-year closure plan.
In an Early Notice Letter dated January 22, 2020 (revised February 7, 2020), Ecology notified the City that the
2009 NFA determination had been rescinded and the Site had been placed on Ecology’s Confirmed and
Suspected Contaminated Sites List for further evaluation. The City is working proactively with Ecology to review
historical information and assess whether additional work is required.
Current Project Status: The City has retained a consultant and legal counsel to review and compile available
historical information and data related to soil, groundwater, and surface water quality. That work will conclude
with an assessment of whether there are any environmental data gaps at the site that require further
assessment.
Measurement of Liability: Expected liabilities were estimated consistent with procedures defined in GASB
Statement 49 Accounting for Pollution Remediation Obligations. Site-specific costs and anticipated liability
offsets (none at this time) were estimated using the expected cash flow technique outlined in Statement 49.
Costs are based on planning-level cost estimates prepared by the City’s consultant for completion of historical
data review and data gaps analysis. Expressed in $2020 that estimate is $0.17 million. This full amount is
recognized on the proprietary statement of net assets.
The cost estimate includes all expected direct and indirect costs (e.g., legal fees, agency oversight fees,
consultant costs) for completing the historical site information compilation and review and data gaps analysis.
The estimate also includes a 25% contingency.
No Anticipated Recoveries: The cleanup and removal liabilities are not offset by any currently-expected cost
recoveries.
Planned Remeasurement: The City will re-measure environmental liabilities for this site following completion of
the data gaps analysis process. If further work is required, it will be included in the year-end 2021 liability
estimate.
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Note 23 – Endowments
Endowments are provided to the City of Anacortes on a voluntary basis by individuals and
private organizations. Permanent endowments require that the principal or corpus of the
endowment be retained in perpetuity. If a donor did not provide specific instructions, (e.g., state
law, etc.) permits the City of Anacortes Council to authorize to expense the net appreciation of
the investments of the endowment funds as discussed below.
These two endowment funds are authorized by ordinance and the purpose, amounts, and
reasons for spending are outlined in the individual ordinances.
Expendable endowments as of December 31, 2020.

Forest Land Endowment Fund

$ 354,021

Tree Keeper Endowment Fund

$ 1,379

Total

$ 355,400

These amounts are reported on the Fiduciary Statement of Net Assets

Nonexpendable endowments as of December 31, 2020

Forest Land Endowment Fund

$ 2,177,922

Tree Keeper Endowment Fund

$ 25,503

Total

$ 2,203,425
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NOTE 24 – COVID-19 PANDEMIC
In February 2020, the Governor of the state of Washington declared a state of emergency in response to
the spread of the deadly new virus known as COVID-19. In the months following the declaration,
precautionary measures to slow the spread of the virus were ordered. These measures included closing
schools, cancelling public events, limiting public and private gatherings, and restricting business
operations, travel and non-essential activities.
In response to the pandemic, on March 16, 2020, City Council adopted Resolution 2082, which ratified a
proclamation of emergency, and identified a number of City measures to address the pandemic, which
included closing City buildings to the public and enacting certain budget measures. Certain elements of
the proclamation have since been extended, consistent with State and local Health department
guidelines. During first quarter 2021, the parks department and library started reopening parts of those
departments on a limited and appointment basis, within the guidelines provided by State and local Health
departments.
The length of time these measures will continue to be in place, and the full extent of the financial impact
on the city is unknown at this time.
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NOTE 25 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 16, 2021 the City Council approved ordinance 3084 which authorized a line of
credit not to exceed $4,500,000. The primary purpose of the line of credit is to support the
continued build out of the City broadband network. The City will report the line of credit in a
short term debt note in the proceeding reporting period.
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361,000
(1,164,789)
(803,789)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Refunding debt proceeds
Use of refunding debt proceeds
Capital Leases
Disposition of capital assets
Total other financing sources (uses)

10,601,784

7,034,259

10,601,784

6,188,576

(3,567,525)

361,000
(1,164,789)
(803,789)

12,312,627

10,601,784
2,548,556

(837,713)

363,295
(1,123,142)
5,970
(753,877)

(83,836)

21,081,824

723,137
4,136,470
8,128,864
320,387
101,624
310,073
1,354,035
3,946,909
2,060,325

4,355,857
7,148,899
4,079,980
421,059
1,003,368
1,418,998
1,967,314
116,182
195,207
291,123
20,997,987

2,729,812

2,295
41,647
5,970
49,912

2,679,900

(2,913,624)

(30,992)
(3,516,359)
(394,806)
(71,585)
7,392
(107,482)
113,619
(516,486)
1,603,074

45,885
1,032,401
67,152
(1,146,160)
57,275
241,407
(521,686)
(62,553)
98,015
(45,461)
(233,724)

Variance With
Final Budget
Actual Amounts Over/(Under)

(134,517)

(6,047)

(128,470)

1,609,740
1,609,740

(1,738,210)

3,152,786

3,152,786
-

679,600
354,260
377,207
3,110
400
1,414,577

(134,517)

(6,047)

(128,470)

1,609,740
1,609,740

(1,738,210)

2,473,186

2,473,186
-

354,260
377,207
3,110
400
734,977

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final

822,626

129,328

63,713

-

63,713

3,096,709

3,114,521
(17,812)

700,000
1,350,522
1,106,053
3,847
3,160,422

758,914

263,844

(322,598)
(322,598)

586,443

(589,495)

(589,495)
-

17,928
(38,256)
3,837
12,852
481
107
(3,053)

822,626

758,914

63,713

-

63,713

3,125,709

3,143,521
(17,812)

679,000
1,350,522
1,156,053
3,847
3,189,422

758,914
47,057
1,096,874

290,903

-

290,903

3,296,047

3,255,601
40,445

685,377
1,467,551
1,423,842
10,079
101
3,586,950

227,191

-

227,191

170,338

112,080
58,258

6,377
117,029
267,789
6,232
101
397,528

Variance With
Final Budget
Actual Amounts Over/(Under)

Ambulance Service Fund 110

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final

(6,047)

135,375

1,287,142
1,287,142

(1,151,767)

1,883,691

1,883,691
-

372,188
338,951
6,947
12,852
881
107
731,924

Variance With
Final Budget
Actual Amounts Over/(Under)

Street Maintenance Fund 104

The City budgets certain funds as Special Revenue Funds for budgetary control purposes which are included in the General Fund for GAAP reporting purposes. The difference between this statement and our budget documents is
highlighted by including the budget basis comparison schedules for those funds included in General Fund for GAAP reporting purposes.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

Fund Balances - January 1
Change in Accounting Principle
Prior Period Adjustments
Fund Balances - December 31

(4,413,208)

(3,609,419)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Net change in fund balances

23,995,448

23,170,531

(2,763,736)

754,128
7,652,829
8,523,670
391,971
94,231
417,555
1,240,416
4,463,395
457,251

4,309,972
6,116,497
4,012,828
1,567,219
946,093
1,177,591
2,488,999
178,735
97,192
336,585
21,231,711

767,128
6,922,129
8,701,870
404,333
94,231
177,555
1,561,525
4,664,507
(122,749)

3,609,372
6,116,497
4,012,828
1,567,219
946,093
657,591
2,288,999
178,735
97,192
86,585
19,561,111

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Judicial
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Social Services
Economic environment
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and debt issue costs
Total Expenditures

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property
Sales
Utility
Other
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charge for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Other revenue
Total Revenues

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final

Combined General Fund

City of Anacortes
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget to Actual (GAAP Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
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8,789,859

5,286,130

4,427,447

(3,503,730)

8,789,859

(4,362,413)

361,000
361,000

7,478,591

8,789,859

(1,311,269)

363,295
5,518
368,813

(1,680,081)

17,335,818

723,137
4,136,470
8,128,864
120,626
101,624
310,073
1,354,035
400,664
2,060,325

938,375
6,021,060
4,079,980
421,020
999,121
1,137,436
1,532,475
115,768
121,230
289,271
15,655,736

2,192,461

2,295
5,518
7,813

2,184,648

(2,439,200)

(30,992)
(3,516,359)
(394,806)
(11,395)
7,481
(107,482)
113,202
(103,174)
1,604,324

9,163
(95,437)
67,152
18,589
57,950
103,766
(346,436)
(62,967)
39,481
(45,813)
(254,552)

Variance With
Final Budget
Actual Amounts Over/(Under)

378,950

379,613

(664)

-

(664)

2,206,194

(417)
2,206,611
-

1,923,592
4,922
106,800
167,999
2,217
2,205,531

378,950

379,613

(664)

-

(664)

2,081,582

(417)
2,081,999
-

1,798,980
4,922
106,800
167,999
2,217
2,080,919

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final

700,532

379,613

320,919

452
452

320,467

1,694,468

1,694,468
-

1,816,980
4,247
149,534
33,522
414
10,238
2,014,935

321,582

452
452

321,130

(387,114)

417
(387,531)
-

18,000
(675)
42,734
(134,478)
414
8,021
(65,983)

Variance With
Final Budget
Actual Amounts Over/(Under)

Parks & Recreation Fund (101)

136,601

134,771

1,830

-

1,830

270,951

269,951
1,000

211,140
59,875
1,765
272,780

136,601

134,771

1,830

-

1,830

260,951

259,951
1,000

201,140
59,875
1,765
262,780

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final

209,041

134,771

74,271

-

74,271

199,761

199,761
-

204,086
2,415
64,579
2,951
274,031

72,441

-

72,441

(61,190)

(60,190)
(1,000)

2,946
2,415
4,704
1,186
11,251

Variance With
Final Budget
Actual Amounts Over/(Under)

Grandview Cemetery Fund (102)

The City budgets certain funds as Special Revenue Funds for budgetary control purposes which are included in the General Fund for GAAP reporting purposes. This statement highlights some those differences.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

Fund Balances - January 1
Change in Accounting Principle
Prior Period Adjustments
Fund Balances - December 31

Net change in fund balances

361,000
361,000

(4,723,413)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Refunding debt proceeds
Use of refunding debt proceeds
Capital Leases
Disposition of capital assets
Total other financing sources (uses)

19,775,018

18,754,489

(3,864,730)

754,128
7,652,829
8,523,670
132,021
94,143
417,555
1,240,833
503,838
456,001

929,212
6,116,497
4,012,828
402,431
941,171
1,033,670
1,878,911
178,735
81,749
335,085
15,910,289

767,128
6,922,129
8,701,870
134,383
94,143
177,555
1,561,942
519,338
(123,999)

6,116,497
4,012,828
402,431
941,171
533,670
1,678,911
178,735
81,749
85,085
14,031,077

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Judicial
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Social Services
Economic environment
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and debt issue costs
Total Expenditures

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property
Sales
Utility
Other
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charge for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Other revenue
Total Revenues

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final

General Fund (001)

City of Anacortes
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget to Actual (Budget Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
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453,311

397,348

397,348

(55,963)

-

453,311

(55,963)

-

(55,963)

1,527,100

1,601,100

(55,963)

1,527,100
-

1,380,640
37,121
47,302
4,574
1,500
1,471,137

1,601,100
-

1,474,640
17,121
47,302
4,574
1,500
1,545,137

516,318

453,311
33,032

29,975

-

29,975

1,516,584

1,516,584
-

1,396,415
127,008
14,917
8,219
1,546,559

85,938

-

85,938

(10,516)

(10,516)
-

15,775
89,887
(32,384)
3,645
(1,500)
75,422

Variance With
Final Budget
Actual Amounts Over/(Under)

88

88

192,898

192,986

(89)

(1,164,789)
(1,164,789)

1,164,700

-

-

-

1,164,789
1,164,789

88

88

192,898

192,986

(89)

(1,164,789)
(1,164,789)

1,164,700

-

-

-

1,164,789
1,164,789

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final

197,723

192,986
-

4,737

(1,123,142)
(1,123,142)

1,127,878

-

-

1,127,839
40
1,127,878

4,825

41,647
41,647

(36,822)

(88)

(88)
-

1,127,839
(1,164,749)
(36,911)

Variance With
Final Budget
Actual Amounts Over/(Under)

TBD (106)

75,098

79,119

(4,022)

-

(4,022)

289,450

289,450
-

284,912
516
285,428

75,098

79,119

(4,022)

-

(4,022)

289,450

289,450
-

284,912
516
285,428

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final

80,805

79,119

1,686

-

1,686

274,398

274,398
-

2,219
271,821
1,368
676
276,084

5,707

-

5,707

(15,052)

(15,052)
-

2,219
(13,092)
852
676
(9,345)

Variance With
Final Budget
Actual Amounts Over/(Under)

Washington Park Fund (107)

The City budgets certain funds as Special Revenue Funds for budgetary control purposes which are included in the General Fund for GAAP reporting purposes. This statement highlights some those differences.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

Fund Balances - January 1
Change in Accounting Principle
Prior Period Adjustments
Fund Balances - December 31

Net change in fund balances

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Refunding debt proceeds
Use of refunding debt proceeds
Capital Leases
Disposition of capital assets
Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Judicial
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Social Services
Economic environment
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and debt issue costs
Total Expenditures

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property
Sales
Utility
Other
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charge for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Other revenue
Total Revenues

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final

Public Library Fund (103)

City of Anacortes
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget to Actual (Budget Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020
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572,124

567,235

580,235

(4,889)

-

572,124

8,111

-

(4,889)

61,259

48,259

8,111

61,009
250

50,000
6,370
56,370

48,009
250

50,000
6,370
56,370

571,234

572,124

(891)

-

(891)

60,795

60,795
-

386
50,000
9,518
59,904

3,998

-

3,998

(464)

(214)
(250)

386
3,148
3,534

Variance With
Final Budget
Actual Amounts Over/(Under)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,531,943

2,489,084

42,859

-

42,859

-

-

41,682
1,177
42,859

42,859

-

42,859

-

-

41,682
1,177
42,859

Variance With
Final Budget
Actual Amounts Over/(Under)

Forestland Endowment Fund (114)

822,626

758,914

63,713

-

63,713

3,944,666

3,962,478
(17,812)

700,000
1,350,522
1,954,010
3,847
4,008,379

822,626

758,914

63,713

-

63,713

3,973,666

3,991,478
(17,812)

679,000
1,350,522
2,004,010
3,847
4,037,379

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final

1,096,874

758,914
47,057

290,903

-

290,903

3,990,372

3,949,927
40,445

685,377
1,467,551
2,118,168
10,079
101
4,281,276

227,191

-

227,191

16,706

(41,551)
58,258

6,377
117,029
114,158
6,232
101
243,897

Variance With
Final Budget
Actual Amounts Over/(Under)

Ambulance Service Fund 110

The City budgets certain funds as Special Revenue Funds for budgetary control purposes which are included in the General Fund for GAAP reporting purposes. This statement highlights some those differences.
The Ambulance Service Fund is budgeted using the accrual method of accounting and presented on the governmental statements as modified accrual (GAAP)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

Fund Balances - January 1
Change in Accounting Principle
Prior Period Adjustments
Fund Balances - December 31

Net change in fund balances

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Refunding debt proceeds
Use of refunding debt proceeds
Capital Leases
Disposition of capital assets
Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Judicial
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Social Services
Economic environment
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and debt issue costs
Total Expenditures

REVENUES
Taxes:
Property
Sales
Utility
Other
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charge for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment income
Other revenue
Total Revenues

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final

ACFL Management Fund (113)

City of Anacortes
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget to Actual (Budget Basis)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

Firefighters’PensionFund
GASBStatementNo.67MoneyͲWeightedRateofReturn
FiscalYear
Ending
December31

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

N/A
N/A
N/A
0.03%
0.04%
1.45%
1.01%
1.32%
2.53%
2.10%

CalculationofMoneyͲWeightedRateofReturn
ThemoneyͲweightedrateofreturnconsidersthechangingamountsactuallyinvestedduringaperiodand
weightstheamountofpensionplaninvestmentsbytheproportionoftimetheyareavailabletoearna
returnduringthatperiod.Externalcashflowsaredeterminedonamonthlybasisandareassumedtooccur
atthebeginningofeachmonth.Externalcashinflowsarenettedwithexternalcashoutflows,resultingina
netexternalcashflowineachmonth.ThemoneyͲweightedrateofreturniscalculatednetofinvestment
expenses.
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2019
$0
23
0
0
70
(30)
63
589
652

2018
$0
21
0
0
(28)
(30)
(37)
626
589

2017
$0
23
0
(19)
15
(30)
(10)
636
626

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

FiscalYearEndingDecember31
2016
2015
2014
2013
$0
$0
$0
N/A
23
22
23
N/A
0
0
0
N/A
0
(54)
0
N/A
(16)
61
16
N/A
(28)
(27)
(26)
N/A
(22)
3
13
N/A
658
655
642
N/A
636
658
655
N/A

$5
$5
$9
$5
$5
$7
$5
29
23
22
22
21
20
21
4
5
3
2
3
0
0
(30)
(30)
(30)
(30)
(28)
(27)
(26)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(12)
(3)
(12)
(3)
(12)
(11)
0
(4)
(1)
(7)
(4)
(10)
(10)
(1)
199
199
207
210
221
231
232
195
199
199
207
210
221
231
418
453
390
419
425
437
424
31.80% 30.49% 33.82% 33.01% 33.09% 33.59% 35.27%
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

2020
$0
18
0
(69)
42
(30)
(39)
652
612

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

2012
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

2011
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, recalculations of prior years are not required, and if prior years are

Netpensionliabilityasa%ofcoveredpayroll

Coveredpayroll

Fiduciarynetpositionasa%oftotalpensionliability

Netpensionliability,ending=(a)Ͳ(b)

Fiduciarynetposition,ending(b)

Fiduciarynetposition,beginning

Netchangeinplanfiduciarynetposition

Administrativeexpenses

Medicalpaymentsfromfund

Benefitpayments

Investmentincomenetofinvestmentexpenses

Contributionsfromstatefireinsurancepremiumtax

Employercontributions

FiduciaryNetPosition

Totalpensionliability,ending(a)

Totalpensionliability,beginning

Netchangeintotalpensionliability

Benefitpayments

Effectofassumptiononchangesorinputs

Effectofeconomic/demographicgainsorlosses

Effectonplanchanges

Interestontotalpensionliability

ServiceCost

TotalPensionLiability

$Thousands

GASBStatementNo.67and68ScheduleofChangesinNetPensionLiabilityandRelatedRatios

Firefighters’PensionFund
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7044.58%

9809.41%

67,670 0

$6,084,758
0
231,531
0
527,767
(206,029)
0
6,638,027

$6,337,109
0
222,058
0
(203,271)
(271,138)
0
6,084,758
86,375

2019

2018

NA

0

$6,638,027
0
227375
0
547,350
(285,650)
0
7,127,102

2020

2021

CityofAnacortes
ScheduleofChangesinTotalOPEBLiabilityandRelatedRatios
LEOFF1
FortheyearendedDecember31,2020
Last10FiscalYears*

NotestoSchedule:
* Untilafull10Ͳyeartrendiscompiled,onlyinformationforthoseyearsavailableispresented.
Noassetsareaccumulatedinatrustthatmeetsthecriteriainparagraph4ofGASB75.
ThelastworkingLeoff1employeeretiredin2019.

TotalOPEBliabilityasa%ofcoveredpayroll

CoveredͲemployeepayroll

TotalOPEBliabilityͲbeginning
Servicecost
Interest
Changesinbenefitterms
Changesinexperiencedataandassumptions
Benefitpayments
Otherchanges
TotalOPEBliabilityͲending

REQUIREDSUPPLEMENTARYINFORMATION

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027
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Ϯ͕ϲϲϵ͕ϵϬϬ

Ϯϯ͘ϱϱй

ϲϴ͘ϲϰй

Ψ
Ψ
Ψ

й

ŵƉůŽǇĞƌΖƐƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶĂƚĞƐŚĂƌĞŽĨƚŚĞŶĞƚ
ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ

dKd>

ŽǀĞƌĞĚƉĂǇƌŽůů

ŵƉůŽǇĞƌΖƐƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶĂƚĞƐŚĂƌĞŽĨƚŚĞŶĞƚ
ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇĂƐĂƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞŽĨĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ
ƉĂǇƌŽůů

WůĂŶĨŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇŶĞƚƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶĂƐĂƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞŽĨƚŚĞ
ƚŽƚĂůƉĞŶƐŝŽŶůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ
й
ϲϳ͘ϭϮй

Ϯϳ͘ϴϲй

ϭϬ͕ϲϵϴ͕ϴϵϳ

Ϯ͕ϵϴϬ͕ϱϯϱ

Ϭ͘ϬϳϳϱϭϬй

ϮϬϭϵ

ϲϯ͘ϮϮй

ϯϯ͘ϯϯй

ϭϬ͕ϱϯϬ͕Ϯϭϭ

ϯ͕ϱϬϵ͕ϴϱϲ

Ϭ͘ϬϳϴϱϵϬй

ϮϬϭϴ

ϲϭ͘Ϯϰй

ϯϳ͘ϵϱй

ϵ͕ϴϴϬ͕ϴϰϲ

ϯ͕ϳϱϬ͕ϭϳϳ

Ϭ͘ϬϳϵϬϯϯй

ϮϬϭϳ

EŽƚĞƐƚŽ^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ͗
ΎhŶƚŝůĂĨƵůůϭϬͲǇĞĂƌƚƌĞŶĚŝƐĐŽŵƉŝůĞĚ͕ŽŶůǇŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶĨŽƌƚŚŽƐĞǇĞĂƌƐĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞŝƐƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ͘
ΎΎŚĂƌůĞƐƌŶĞƐŽŶƌĞƚŝƌĞĚŽŶϴͬϯϭͬϭϵĂŶĚ^ĂůůǇ,ŝůůƌĞƚŝƌĞĚŽŶϲͬϯϬͬϮϬϮϬ͘EŽŽƚŚĞƌĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐĂƌĞŵĞŵďĞƌƐŽĨWĞƌƐϭ͘

ϭϭ͕ϯϯϳ͕ϵϳϲ

Ϭ͘ϬϳϱϲϮϯй

ϮϬϮϬ

ϱϳ͘Ϭϯй

ϰϱ͘ϯϭй

ϵ͕Ϯϵϵ͕ϳϱϱ

ϰ͕Ϯϭϯ͕ϱϲϰ

Ϭ͘Ϭϳϴϰϱϴй

ϮϬϭϲ

ŝƚǇŽĨŶĂĐŽƌƚĞƐ
^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞŽĨWƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶĂƚĞ^ŚĂƌĞŽĨƚŚĞEĞƚWĞŶƐŝŽŶ>ŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ
WĞƌƐϭ
ƐŽĨ:ƵŶĞϯϬ͕ϮϬϮϬ
>ĂƐƚϭϬ&ŝƐĐĂůzĞĂƌƐΎ

ŵƉůŽǇĞƌΖƐƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞŶĞƚƉĞŶƐŝŽŶůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ
;ĂƐƐĞƚͿ
й

ZYh/Z^hWW>DEdZz/E&KZDd/KE

ϱϵ͘ϭϬй

ϰϲ͘ϭϬй

ϴ͕ϲϯϯ͕ϬϯϬ

ϯ͕ϵϳϵ͕ϵϱϯ

Ϭ͘ϬϳϲϬϴϱй

ϮϬϭϱ

ϮϬyϰ

ϮϬyϯ

ϮϬyϮ

ϮϬyϭ
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ϭ͕ϮϮϳ͕ϴϯϲ

ϭϬ͘ϵϰй

ϵϳ͘ϮϮй

Ψ
Ψ

й

ŵƉůŽǇĞƌΖƐƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶĂƚĞƐŚĂƌĞŽĨƚŚĞŶĞƚ
ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ

ŽǀĞƌĞĚƉĂǇƌŽůů

ŵƉůŽǇĞƌΖƐƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶĂƚĞƐŚĂƌĞŽĨƚŚĞŶĞƚ
ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇĂƐĂƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞŽĨĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ
ƉĂǇƌŽůů

WůĂŶĨŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇŶĞƚƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶĂƐĂƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞŽĨƚŚĞ
ƚŽƚĂůƉĞŶƐŝŽŶůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ
й
ϵϳ͘ϳϳй

ϴ͘ϵϬй

ϭϬ͕ϱϱϭ͕ϳϯϯ

ϵϯϵ͕ϬϳϮ

Ϭ͘Ϭϵϲϲϳϴй

ϮϬϭϵ

ϵϱ͘ϳϳй

ϭϲ͘Ϭϳй

ϭϬ͕ϯϴϭ͕ϲϯϯ

ϭ͕ϲϲϴ͕ϱϴϰ

Ϭ͘ϬϵϳϳϮϲй

ϮϬϭϴ

EŽƚĞƐƚŽ^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ͗
ΎhŶƚŝůĂĨƵůůϭϬͲǇĞĂƌƚƌĞŶĚŝƐĐŽŵƉŝůĞĚ͕ŽŶůǇŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶĨŽƌƚŚŽƐĞǇĞĂƌƐĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞŝƐƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ͘

ϭϭ͕ϮϮϰ͕ϯϳϬ

Ϭ͘ϬϵϲϬϬϰй

ϮϬϮϬ

ϵϬ͘ϵϳй

ϯϱ͘ϰϬй

ϵ͕ϴϬϲ͕ϵϵϯ

ϯ͕ϰϳϭ͕ϴϰϳ

Ϭ͘ϬϵϵϵϮϯй

ϮϬϭϳ

ϴϱ͘ϴϮй

ϱϯ͘ϵϮй

ϵ͕ϮϮϳ͕ϵϮϯ

ϰ͕ϵϳϱ͕ϵϲϮ

Ϭ͘ϬϵϴϴϮϵй

ϮϬϭϲ

ŝƚǇŽĨŶĂĐŽƌƚĞƐ
^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞŽĨWƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶĂƚĞ^ŚĂƌĞŽĨƚŚĞEĞƚWĞŶƐŝŽŶ>ŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ
WĞƌƐϮͬϯ
ƐŽĨ:ƵŶĞϯϬ͕ϮϬϮϬ
>ĂƐƚϭϬ&ŝƐĐĂůzĞĂƌƐΎ

ŵƉůŽǇĞƌΖƐƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞŶĞƚƉĞŶƐŝŽŶůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ
;ĂƐƐĞƚͿ
й

ZYh/Z^hWW>DEdZz/E&KZDd/KE

ϴϵ͘ϮϬй

ϯϵ͘ϵϰй

ϴ͕ϲϯϯ͕ϬϯϬ

ϯ͕ϰϰϴ͕ϭϬϳ

Ϭ͘ϬϵϲϱϬϯй

ϮϬϭϱ

ϮϬyϰ

ϮϬyϯ

ϮϬyϮ
͘

ϮϬyϭ
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ͲϯϭϬϳ͘ϯϮй

ϭϰϲ͘ϴϴй

Ψ
Ψ

й

dKd>

ŽǀĞƌĞĚƉĂǇƌŽůůΎΎ

ŵƉůŽǇĞƌΖƐƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶĂƚĞƐŚĂƌĞŽĨƚŚĞŶĞƚ
ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇĂƐĂƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞŽĨĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ
ƉĂǇƌŽůů

WůĂŶĨŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇŶĞƚƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶĂƐĂƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞŽĨƚŚĞ
ƚŽƚĂůƉĞŶƐŝŽŶůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ
й
ϭϰϴ͘ϳϴй

ͲϲϳϮ͘ϬϬй

ϴϴ͕ϭϲϬ

;ϰ͕ϱϵϵ͕ϲϭϭͿ

;ϰ͕ϬϬϳ͕ϭϴϭͿ

;ϱϵϮ͕ϰϯϬͿ

Ϭ͘ϬϮϵϵϳϮй

ϮϬϭϵ

ϭϰϰ͘ϰϮй

Ͳϲϭϴ͘ϵϰй

ϴϲ͕ϯϳϱ

;ϰ͕ϭϱϬ͕ϳϬϲͿ

;ϯ͕ϲϭϲ͕ϬϵϱͿ

;ϱϯϰ͕ϲϭϭͿ

Ϭ͘ϬϮϵϰϰϳй

ϮϬϭϴ

ϭϯϱ͘ϵϲй

ͲϱϮϰ͘ϲϴй

ϴϰ͕Ϯϯϲ

;ϯ͕ϰϯϭ͕ϰϭϰͿ

;Ϯ͕ϵϴϵ͕ϰϰϴͿ

;ϰϰϭ͕ϵϲϲͿ

Ϭ͘ϬϮϵϭϯϬй

ϮϬϭϳ

EŽƚĞƐƚŽ^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ͗
ΎhŶƚŝůĂĨƵůůϭϬͲǇĞĂƌƚƌĞŶĚŝƐĐŽŵƉŝůĞĚ͕ŽŶůǇŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶĨŽƌƚŚŽƐĞǇĞĂƌƐĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞŝƐƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ͘
ΎΎŽƵŐ>ŝĚĚůĞǁĂƐƚŚĞŝƚǇŽĨŶĂĐŽƌƚĞƐΖƐŽŶůǇƉŽůŝĐĞŽĨĨŝĐĞƌĞůŝŐŝďůĞĨŽƌ>ĞŽĨĨϭƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ͘,ĞƌĞƚŝƌĞĚŽŶϵͬϭϮͬϮϬϭϵ

ϭϵ͕ϰϵϴ

;ϰ͕ϳϬϯ͕ϵϳϭͿ

;ϰ͕Ϭϵϴ͕ϬϵϵͿ

Ψ

^ƚĂƚĞΖƐƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶĂƚĞƐŚĂƌĞŽĨƚŚĞŶĞƚƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ
ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ;ĂƐƐĞƚͿĂƐƐŽĐŝĂƚĞĚǁŝƚŚƚŚĞĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ

;ϲϬϱ͕ϴϳϭͿ

Ψ

Ϭ͘ϬϯϮϬϴϮй

ϮϬϮϬ

ϮϬϭϲ

ϭϮϯ͘ϳϰй

ͲϯϲϬ͘ϴϴй

ϴϭ͕ϲϴϱ

;Ϯ͕Ϯϴϴ͕ϳϬϳͿ

;ϭ͕ϵϵϯ͕ϵϮϭͿ

;Ϯϵϰ͕ϳϴϱͿ

Ϭ͘ϬϮϴϲϭϮй

ŝƚǇŽĨŶĂĐŽƌƚĞƐ
^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞŽĨWƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶĂƚĞ^ŚĂƌĞŽĨƚŚĞEĞƚWĞŶƐŝŽŶ>ŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ
>ĞŽĨĨϭ
ƐŽĨ:ƵŶĞϯϬ͕ϮϬϮϬ
>ĂƐƚϭϬ&ŝƐĐĂůzĞĂƌƐΎ

ŵƉůŽǇĞƌΖƐƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶĂƚĞƐŚĂƌĞŽĨƚŚĞŶĞƚ
ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ

ŵƉůŽǇĞƌΖƐƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞŶĞƚƉĞŶƐŝŽŶůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ
;ĂƐƐĞƚͿ
й

ZYh/Z^hWW>DEdZz/E&KZDd/KE

ϭϮϳ͘ϯϲй

ͲϰϮϱ͘ϯϴй

ϴϬ͕ϱϯϱ

;Ϯ͕ϲϱϵ͕ϴϭϰͿ

;Ϯ͕ϯϭϳ͕ϮϯϬͿ

;ϯϰϮ͕ϱϴϰͿ

Ϭ͘ϬϮϴϰϮϱй

ϮϬϭϱ

ϮϬyϰ

ϮϬyϯ

ϮϬyϮ

ϮϬyϭ
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;ϯ͕ϭϯϳ͕ϯϵϳͿ

ϱϯ͘ϵϵй

ϭϭϱ͘ϴϯй

Ψ

Ψ
Ψ
Ψ

й

ŵƉůŽǇĞƌΖƐƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶĂƚĞƐŚĂƌĞŽĨƚŚĞŶĞƚ
ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ

^ƚĂƚĞΖƐƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶĂƚĞƐŚĂƌĞŽĨƚŚĞŶĞƚƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ
ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ;ĂƐƐĞƚͿĂƐƐŽĐŝĂƚĞĚǁŝƚŚƚŚĞĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ

dKd>

ŽǀĞƌĞĚƉĂǇƌŽůů

ŵƉůŽǇĞƌΖƐƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶĂƚĞƐŚĂƌĞŽĨƚŚĞŶĞƚ
ƉĞŶƐŝŽŶůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇĂƐĂƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞŽĨĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ
ƉĂǇƌŽůů

WůĂŶĨŝĚƵĐŝĂƌǇŶĞƚƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶĂƐĂƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞŽĨƚŚĞ
ƚŽƚĂůƉĞŶƐŝŽŶůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ
й
ϭϭϵ͘ϰϯй

ϲϲ͘Ϭϯй

ϱ͕ϯϳϱ͕ϳϮϱ

;ϱ͕ϴϳϰ͕ϭϳϰͿ

;Ϯ͕ϯϮϰ͕ϱϯϳͿ

;ϯ͕ϱϰϵ͕ϲϯϳͿ

Ϭ͘ϭϱϯϮϮϬй

ϮϬϭϵ

ϭϭϴ͘ϱϬй

ϲϬ͘ϳϳй

ϱ͕ϬϲϮ͕ϱϭϵ

;ϱ͕Ϭϲϴ͕ϯϵϯͿ

;ϭ͕ϵϵϭ͕ϵϰϯͿ

;ϯ͕Ϭϳϲ͕ϰϱϬͿ

Ϭ͘ϭϱϭϱϯϯй

ϮϬϭϴ

EŽƚĞƐƚŽ^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ͗
ΎhŶƚŝůĂĨƵůůϭϬͲǇĞĂƌƚƌĞŶĚŝƐĐŽŵƉŝůĞĚ͕ŽŶůǇŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶĨŽƌƚŚŽƐĞǇĞĂƌƐĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞŝƐƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ͘

ϱ͕ϴϭϬ͕ϳϳϬ

;ϱ͕ϭϰϯ͕ϱϮϱͿ

;Ϯ͕ϬϬϲ͕ϭϮϴͿ

Ϭ͘ϭϱϯϴϬϱй

ϮϬϮϬ

ϭϭϯ͘ϯϲй

ϰϰ͘ϰϲй

ϰ͕ϴϭϮ͕ϴϵϭ

;ϯ͕ϱϮϳ͕ϳϮϴͿ

;ϭ͕ϯϴϴ͕ϬϬϭͿ

;Ϯ͕ϭϯϵ͕ϳϮϳͿ

Ϭ͘ϭϱϰϭϵϱй

ϮϬϭϳ

ϭϬϲ͘Ϭϰй

ϭϵ͘ϮϬй

ϰ͕ϴϭϮ͕ϬϳϮ

;ϭ͕ϱϮϲ͕ϭϵϵͿ

;ϲϬϮ͕ϯϬϵͿ

;ϵϮϯ͕ϴϵϬͿ

Ϭ͘ϭϱϴϴϰϱй

ϮϬϭϲ

ŝƚǇŽĨŶĂĐŽƌƚĞƐ
^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞŽĨWƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶĂƚĞ^ŚĂƌĞŽĨƚŚĞEĞƚWĞŶƐŝŽŶ>ŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ
>ĞŽĨĨϮ
ƐŽĨ:ƵŶĞϯϬ͕ϮϬϮϬ
>ĂƐƚϭϬ&ŝƐĐĂůzĞĂƌƐΎ

ŵƉůŽǇĞƌΖƐƉƌŽƉŽƌƚŝŽŶŽĨƚŚĞŶĞƚƉĞŶƐŝŽŶůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ
;ĂƐƐĞƚͿ
й

ZYh/Z^hWW>DEdZz/E&KZDd/KE

ϭϭϭ͘ϲϳй

ϯϱ͘ϰϭй

ϰ͕ϰϵϲ͕ϴϭϭ

;Ϯ͕ϲϰϱ͕ϯϯϴͿ

;ϭ͕ϬϱϮ͕ϵϭϲͿ

;ϭ͕ϱϵϮ͕ϰϮϮͿ

Ϭ͘ϭϱϰϵϯϱй

ϮϬϭϱ

ϮϬyϰ

ϮϬyϯ

ϮϬyϮ

ϮϬyϭ
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;ϱϰϲ͕ϰϴϲͿ

ϭϭ͕ϯϮϱ͕ϰϰϰ

ϰ͘ϴϯй

Ψ
Ψ
Ψ

ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐŝŶƌĞůĂƚŝŽŶƚŽƚŚĞƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌŝůǇŽƌ
ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƵĂůůǇƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ

ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶĚĞĨŝĐŝĞŶĐǇ;ĞǆĐĞƐƐͿ

ŽǀĞƌĞĚƉĂǇƌŽůů

ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐĂƐĂƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞŽĨĐŽǀĞƌĞĚƉĂǇƌŽůů й
ϱ͘Ϭϲй

ϭϬ͕ϵϰϰ͕Ϯϳϵ

Ϭ

;ϱϱϯ͕ϳϳϱͿ

ϱϱϯ͕ϳϳϱ

ϮϬϭϵ

ϱ͘ϭϲй

ϭϬ͕ϱϯϬ͕Ϯϭϭ

Ϭ

;ϱϰϮ͕ϵϬϰͿ

ϱϰϮ͕ϵϬϰ

ϮϬϭϴ

ϰ͘ϵϱй

ϭϬ͕Ϭϳϭ͕ϴϰϵ

Ϭ

;ϰϵϵ͕ϬϬϮͿ

ϰϵϵ͕ϬϬϮ

ϮϬϭϳ

ŝƚǇŽĨŶĂĐŽƌƚĞƐ
^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞŽĨŵƉůŽǇĞƌŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ
WĞƌƐϭ
&ŽƌƚŚĞǇĞĂƌĞŶĚĞĚĞĐĞŵďĞƌϯϭ͕ϮϬϮϬ
>ĂƐƚϭϬ&ŝƐĐĂůzĞĂƌƐΎ

EŽƚĞƐƚŽ^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ͗
ΎhŶƚŝůĂĨƵůůϭϬͲǇĞĂƌƚƌĞŶĚŝƐĐŽŵƉŝůĞĚ͕ŽŶůǇŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶĨŽƌƚŚŽƐĞǇĞĂƌƐĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞŝƐƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ͘
ΎΎ^ĂůůǇ,ŝůůƌĞƚŝƌĞĚŽŶϲͬϯϬͬϮϬϮϬ͘EŽŽƚŚĞƌĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐĂƌĞŵĞŵďĞƌƐŽĨWĞƌƐϭ͘

Ϭ

ϱϰϲ͕ϰϴϲ

ϮϬϮϬ

^ƚĂƚƵƚŽƌŝůǇŽƌĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƵĂůůǇƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ Ψ

ZYh/Z^hWW>DEdZz/E&KZDd/KE

ϰ͘ϴϮй

ϵ͕ϱϵϴ͕ϰϴϮ

Ϭ

;ϰϲϮ͕ϭϵϰͿ

ϰϲϮ͕ϭϵϰ

ϮϬϭϲ

ϰ͘ϰϬй

ϵ͕ϬϬϭ͕ϯϬϮ

Ϭ

;ϯϵϲ͕ϮϯϴͿ

ϯϵϲ͕Ϯϯϴ

ϮϬϭϱ

ϮϬyϰ

ϮϬyϯ

ϮϬyϮ

ϮϬyϭ
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;ϴϵϯ͕ϭϵϯͿ

ϭϭ͕Ϯϳϳ͕ϲϵϬ

ϳ͘ϵϮй

Ψ
Ψ
Ψ

ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐŝŶƌĞůĂƚŝŽŶƚŽƚŚĞƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌŝůǇŽƌ
ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƵĂůůǇƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ

ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶĚĞĨŝĐŝĞŶĐǇ;ĞǆĐĞƐƐͿ

ŽǀĞƌĞĚƉĂǇƌŽůů

ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐĂƐĂƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞŽĨĐŽǀĞƌĞĚƉĂǇƌŽůů й
ϳ͘ϳϭй

ϭϬ͕ϳϵϳ͕ϲϬϮ

Ϭ

;ϴϯϮ͕ϮϭϰͿ

ϴϯϮ͕Ϯϭϰ

ϮϬϭϵ

ϳ͘ϰϴй

ϭϬ͕ϯϴϭ͕ϲϯϯ

Ϭ

;ϳϳϲ͕ϱϱϵͿ

ϳϳϲ͕ϱϱϵ

ϮϬϭϴ

ϲ͘ϴϭй

ϵ͕ϵϳϴ͕ϰϭϱ

Ϭ

;ϲϳϵ͕ϱϳϯͿ

ϲϳϵ͕ϱϳϯ

ϮϬϭϳ

ŝƚǇŽĨŶĂĐŽƌƚĞƐ
^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞŽĨŵƉůŽǇĞƌŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ
WĞƌƐϮͬϯ
&ŽƌƚŚĞǇĞĂƌĞŶĚĞĚĞĐĞŵďĞƌϯϭ͕ϮϬϮϬ
>ĂƐƚϭϬ&ŝƐĐĂůzĞĂƌƐΎ

EŽƚĞƐƚŽ^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ͗
ΎhŶƚŝůĂĨƵůůϭϬͲǇĞĂƌƚƌĞŶĚŝƐĐŽŵƉŝůĞĚ͕ŽŶůǇŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶĨŽƌƚŚŽƐĞǇĞĂƌƐĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞŝƐƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ͘

Ϭ

ϴϵϯ͕ϭϵϯ

ϮϬϮϬ

^ƚĂƚƵƚŽƌŝůǇŽƌĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƵĂůůǇƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ Ψ

ZYh/Z^hWW>DEdZz/E&KZDd/KE

ϲ͘Ϯϯй

ϵ͕ϱϮϱ͕ϵϱϵ

Ϭ

;ϱϵϯ͕ϲϯϵͿ

ϱϵϯ͕ϲϯϵ

ϮϬϭϲ

ϱ͘ϱϵй

ϴ͕ϵϮϵ͕ϵϲϬ

Ϭ

;ϰϵϴ͕ϵϳϱͿ

ϰϵϴ͕ϵϳϱ

ϮϬϭϱ

ϮϬyϰ

ϮϬyϯ

ϮϬyϮ

ϮϬyϭ
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Ϭ

Ϭ

Ϭ͘ϬϬй

Ψ
Ψ
Ψ

ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐŝŶƌĞůĂƚŝŽŶƚŽƚŚĞƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌŝůǇŽƌ
ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƵĂůůǇƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ

ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶĚĞĨŝĐŝĞŶĐǇ;ĞǆĐĞƐƐͿ

ŽǀĞƌĞĚƉĂǇƌŽůů

ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐĂƐĂƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞŽĨĐŽǀĞƌĞĚƉĂǇƌŽůů й

ϱϮ

Ϭ͘Ϭϴй

ϲϳ͕ϲϳϬ

Ϭ

;ϱϮͿ

ϮϬϭϵ

Ϭ

Ϭ

Ϭ

Ϭ͘ϬϬй

ϴϲ͕ϯϳϱ

ϮϬϭϴ

Ϭ

Ϭ

Ϭ

Ϭ͘ϬϬй

ϴϱ͕ϴϭϴ

ϮϬϭϳ

ŝƚǇŽĨŶĂĐŽƌƚĞƐ
^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞŽĨŵƉůŽǇĞƌŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ
>ĞŽĨĨϭ
&ŽƌƚŚĞǇĞĂƌĞŶĚĞĚĞĐĞŵďĞƌϯϭ͕ϮϬϮϬ
>ĂƐƚϭϬ&ŝƐĐĂůzĞĂƌƐΎ

EŽƚĞƐƚŽ^ĐŚĞĚƵůĞ͗
ΎhŶƚŝůĂĨƵůůϭϬͲǇĞĂƌƚƌĞŶĚŝƐĐŽŵƉŝůĞĚ͕ŽŶůǇŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƚŝŽŶĨŽƌƚŚŽƐĞǇĞĂƌƐĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞŝƐƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ͘
ΎΎdŚĞŝƚǇŽĨŶĂĐŽƌƚĞƐŚĂƐŶŽĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐǁŚŽĂƌĞ>ĞŽĨĨϭƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂŶƚƐ;ĂƐŽĨϵͬϭϮͬϮϬϭϵͿ

Ϭ

Ϭ

ϮϬϮϬ

^ƚĂƚƵƚŽƌŝůǇŽƌĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƵĂůůǇƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ Ψ

ZYh/Z^hWW>DEdZz/E&KZDd/KE

Ϭ͘ϬϬй

ϴϮ͕ϱϵϲ

Ϭ

Ϭ

Ϭ

ϮϬϭϲ

Ϭ͘ϬϬй

ϴϭ͕ϰϰϵ

Ϭ

Ϭ

Ϭ

ϮϬϭϱ

ϮϬyϰ

ϮϬyϯ

ϮϬyϮ

ϮϬyϭ
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;ϯϬϲ͕ϲϬϳͿ

ϱ͕ϴϵϯ͕Ϯϯϰ

ϱ͘ϮϬй

Ψ
Ψ
Ψ

ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐŝŶƌĞůĂƚŝŽŶƚŽƚŚĞƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌŝůǇŽƌ
ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƵĂůůǇƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ
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$68,327.62 US Department of Housing and
Urban Development, Office of
Community Planning and
Covid-19: Community
Development Block
Grants/Entitlement Grants
$0.00 US Department of Housing and
Urban Development, Office of
Community Planning and
Covid-19: Community
Development Block
Grants/Entitlement Grants
$56,417.00 US Department of Housing and
Urban Development, Office of
Community Planning and
Covid-19: Community
Development Block
Grants/Entitlement Grants
$154,659.40 Subtotal CFDA

14.218

14.218

14.218

14.218

$0.00 US Department of Housing and
Urban Development, Office of
Community Planning and
Community Development Block
Grants/Entitlement Grants

14.218

3
Federal Agency Name/
Federal Program Name

$29,914.78 US Department of Housing and
Urban Development, Office of
Community Planning and
Community Development Block
Grants/Entitlement Grants

2
Covid-19
Expenditures

14.218

1
CFDA
No.

B-20-MW53-0018

B-20-MC53-0018

B-20-MC53-0018

B-yy-MC530018
B-17MC-530018

B-yy-MC530018
B-17MC-530018

4
5
PassOther I.D.
Through
Number
Agency Name

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

From PassThrough
Awards
$0.00

$324,052.90

$56,417.00

$31,996.01

$68,327.62

$137,397.49

6
Expenditures
From
Direct
Awards
$29,914.78

CITY OF ANACORTES
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

$324,052.90

$56,417.00

$31,996.01

$68,327.62

$137,397.49

Total
$29,914.78

$56,417.00

$31,996.01

$68,327.62

$137,397.49

Foot
Sub-Recipient note
Ref.
Awards
$29,914.78

6
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21.019

20.600

Subtotal CFDA

Covid-19: Coronavirus Relief
Fund for Local Government

$792,450.00 US Treasury

$0.00

HVE4052_20-21

HVE3771_APD
_20

WA State
20-6541CDepartment of 106
Commerce
CV20106

$0.00 Department of Transportation,
Washington
Federal Highway Administration Traffic Safety
Commission
High Visibility Enforcement
Mobilizations HVE

20.600

Subtotal CFDA

$0.00 Department of Transportation,
Washington
Federal Highway Administration Traffic Safety
Commission
High Visibility Enforcement
Mobilizations HVE

$0.00

20.600

20.205

STPUS0020(190)
/ LA 8855
Supplement
3

$0.00 Department of Transportation,
WA State
Federal Highway Administration Department of
Transportation
Surface Transportation Program
(STP)

4
5
PassOther I.D.
Through
Number
Agency Name

20.205

3
Federal Agency Name/
Federal Program Name

$0.00 Department of Transportation,
WA State
STPUSFederal Highway Administration Department of 0030(013)
Transportation / LA 8423
Highway Planning and
Construction

2
Covid-19
Expenditures

20.205

1
CFDA
No.

$792,450.00

$3,128.43

$2,711.87

$416.56

$822,694.61

$821,539.25

From PassThrough
Awards
$1,155.36

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

6
Expenditures
From
Direct
Awards
$0.00

CITY OF ANACORTES
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

$792,450.00

$3,128.43

$2,711.87

$416.56

$822,694.61

$821,539.25

Total
$1,155.36

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Foot
Sub-Recipient note
Ref.
Awards
$0.00

6
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3
Federal Agency Name/
Federal Program Name

$5,161.91

$30,085.68 US Department of Health and
Human Services

45.310

93.498

93.498

Covid-19:Washington State
Library/CARES Act
Funding/Institute of Museum
Subtotal CFDA

45.310

Covid-19: Cares Act Financial
Assistance Phase 3

$17,247.80 US Department of Health and
Human Services

Covid-19: Cares Act Financial
Assistance Phase 1

Covid-19: Washington State
Library/CARES Act
Funding/Institute of Museum
$2,938.00 US Treasury

45.310

$723.91 US Treasury

2
Covid-19
Expenditures

Covid-19: Washington State
Library/CARES Act
Funding/Institute of Museum
$1,500.00 US Treasury

45.310

1
CFDA
No.

Office of
Secretary of
State

Office of
Secretary of
State

Office of
Secretary of
State

HHS
Ambulance
Service
Providers
Phase3

HHS
Ambulance
Service
Providers
Phase1

CARES
Library
Program
Outreach

CARES
Library
Program
PPE

CARES
Library
Program
Hotspots

4
5
PassOther I.D.
Through
Number
Agency Name

$0.00

$0.00

$5,161.91

$2,938.00

$1,500.00

$723.91

From PassThrough
Awards

$17,247.80

$30,085.68

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

6
Expenditures
From
Direct
Awards

CITY OF ANACORTES
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

$17,247.80

$30,085.68

$5,161.91

$2,938.00

$1,500.00

$723.91

Total

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Sub-Recipient
Awards

Foot
note
Ref.

6
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$92,240.39

97.036

Major Disaster Assistance Grant

Federal Emergency
Management Agency

Subtotal CFDA

3
Federal Agency Name/
Federal Program Name

Department of Homeland
Security - OPSG 2018

$0.00 Department of Homeland
Security

$47,333.48

93.498

97.067

2
Covid-19
Expenditures

1
CFDA
No.

D20-413
4481-DRWA Covid19

Skagit County EMW-2018Sheriff's Office SS-00088S01

:$6WDWH
0LOLWDU\
'HSDUWPHQW

4
5
PassOther I.D.
Through
Number
Agency Name

$13,729.80

$0.00

From PassThrough
Awards
$0.00

$0.00

$92,240.39

6
Expenditures
From
Direct
Awards
$47,333.48

CITY OF ANACORTES
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

$13,729.80

$92,240.39

Total
$47,333.48

$0.00

$0.00

Sub-Recipient
Awards

Foot
note
Ref.

6
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Covid-19
Expenditures

CFDA
No.

5

PassOther I.D
Through
Number
Agency Name

4
Expenditures
From
Direct
Awards

$1,637,164.75 $463,626.77

From PassThrough
Awards

6

$2,100,791.52

Total

The city has elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. The amount
expended includes no indirect costs.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE

The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the federal grant portion of the program costs. Entire program
costs, including the City's portion, are more than shown. Such expenditures are recognized following, as applicable, either the
cost principles in OMB Circular A-87, cost principles for state or local governments, or the cost cost principles contained in Title 2
US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 2 - PROGRAM COSTS

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS
NOTE 1 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
This Schedule is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the City's financial statements. The City uses the modified accrual
basis of accounting.

The accompanying notes to the Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards are an integral part of this Schedule.

$1,091,845.18

3
Federal Agency Name/
Federal Program Name

TotalFederal
FederalAwards
AwardsExpended
Expended
Total

2

1

CITY OF ANACORTES
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2020

$324,052.90

Sub-Recipient
Awards

Foot
note
Ref.

6

ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE
The State Auditor’s Office is established in the Washington State Constitution and is part of the
executive branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the people of Washington
and serves four-year terms.
We work with state agencies, local governments and the public to achieve our vision of increasing
trust in government by helping governments work better and deliver higher value.
In fulfilling our mission to provide citizens with independent and transparent examinations of how
state and local governments use public funds, we hold ourselves to those same standards by
continually improving our audit quality and operational efficiency, and by developing highly
engaged and committed employees.
As an agency, the State Auditor’s Office has the independence necessary to objectively perform
audits, attestation engagements and investigations. Our work is designed to comply with
professional standards as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state and local laws. The
Office also has an extensive quality control program and undergoes regular external peer review
to ensure our work meets the highest possible standards of accuracy, objectivity and clarity.
Our audits look at financial information and compliance with federal, state and local laws for all
local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of higher
education. In addition, we conduct performance audits and cybersecurity audits of state agencies
and local governments, as well as state whistleblower, fraud and citizen hotline investigations.
The results of our work are available to everyone through the more than 2,000 reports we publish
each year on our website, www.sao.wa.gov. Additionally, we share regular news and other
information via an email subscription service and social media channels.
We take our role as partners in accountability seriously. The Office provides training and technical
assistance to governments both directly and through partnerships with other governmental support
organizations.

Stay connected at sao.wa.gov
•
•
•
•
•
•

Other ways to stay in touch

Find your audit team
Request public records
Search BARS manuals (GAAP and
cash), and find reporting templates
Learn about our training workshops
and on-demand videos
Discover which governments serve you
— enter an address on our map
Explore public financial data
with the Financial Intelligence Tool

Office of the Washington State Auditor

sao.wa.gov

•

Main telephone:
(564) 999-0950

•

Toll-free Citizen Hotline:
(866) 902-3900

•

Email:
webmaster@sao.wa.gov
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